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2019 30

(Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited)

KY1-1104
309GT
(P.0. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands)

03 6775 1458

NB
(Nikko AM Offshore Funds — NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund)

10 1,078

1,000

2019 28 UFJ
107.79
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URJ PB
100-8148
http://www._pb.mufg.jp/

Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited

UFJ PB
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2017 18
LLC
Neuberger Berman Investment
Advisers LLC

)
2018 2003 26

)
2018

() 2019
2019 480,000 5,174
107.79 480,000 107.79
1,000,000 1,000,000 779
)
2003 26
2009 27

)
2019

EC2Y 5AD 480,000 100.00

Nikko AM Global Holdings (1 London Wall, London EC2Y 5AD, United
Limited Kingdom)

2018
2019

1925
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3.24
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23,595,398.76 21.96
14,881,455.42 13.85
14,057,903.46 13.09
12,214,633.19 11.37
9,791,686.47 9.11
9,356,850.00 8.71
4,928,080.66 4.59
4,348,308.48 4.05
3,771,080.13 3.51
3,641,483.79 3.39
2,215,587.31 2.06
1,258,715.63 1.17
104,061,183.30 96.86
3,367,961.69 3.14
107,429,144.99
100.00
11,579,787,538
2019
SSE PLC V/R 2077
4.75 9,110,000 97.91| 8,919,670.43|100.25| 9,132,775.00| 8.50
09/16/77 16
BAYER AG V/R 2075
2.375 7,966,000 111.36| 8,871,073.86|113.72| 9,059,161.81 8.43
04/02/75/EUR/
NGG FINANCE V/R 2073
5.625 6,245,000 | 156.96 | 9,802,442.19|137.72| 8,600,892.74| 8.01
06/18/73/GBP/ 18
ENTERPRISE 2078
PRODUC V/R 5.375 15 5,725,000 100| 5,725,000.00 93| 5,324,250.00| 4.96
02/15/78
TELEFONICA EUR 2168
4.061 4,600,000 118.50| 5,451,229.91|115.16| 5,297,412.86| 4.93
V/R /PERP//EUR/
VODAFONE GRO V/R 2079
3.1 4,077,000 | 117.34| 4,784,003.41| 117.03| 4,771,495.55| 4.44
01/03/79/EUR/
TRANSCANADA 2077
TRUST V/R 5.3 15 4,870,000 102.35| 4,984,574.43| 96.04| 4,677,135.83| 4.35
03/15/77
ENBRIDGE INC V/R 2077
5.5 4,809,000 | 101.14| 4,863,765.69| 96.70| 4,650,110.64| 4.33
07/15/77 15
ENBW V/R 2076
3.625 3,565,000 120.17 | 4,284,009.97 | 119.71| 4,267,806.65| 3.97
04/02/76/EUR/
VOLKSWAGEN INT 2167
10 2.7 3,600,000| 116.23 | 4,184,302.49|115.42| 4,155,046.97 3.87
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 12 14
NEXTERA ENERGY 2077
11 4.8 4,290,000 | 100.35| 4,304,806.93 94| 4,032,600.00] 3.75
CA V/R 12/01/77 12
VOLKSWAGEN INT 2168
12 3.875 3,400,000 | 120.76 | 4,105,897.52|115.87| 3,939,678.57 3.67
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 14
VOLVO TREASU V/R 2078
13 4.85 2,960,000 | 124.64 | 3,689,424.60| 127.55| 3,775,349.73| 3.51
03/10/78/EUR/ 10
ORSTED A/S V/R 3017
14 2.25 3,100,000 | 116.79| 3,620,385.68 | 117.47| 3,641,483.79 3.39
11/24/17/EUR/ 11 24
BHP BILLITON V/R 2076
15 4.75 2,850,000 | 123.28 | 3,513,395.31|122.75| 3,498,323.02 3.26
04/22/76/EUR/ 22
ENGIE SA V/R 2168
16 1.375 2,900,000 | 119.07| 3,452,952.74|113.88| 3,302,519.97 3.07
/PERP//EUR/ 16
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ORANGE SA V/R 2168

17 2.375 2,500,000 111.52| 2,788,034.79|117.78| 2,944,509.73 2.74
/PERP//EUR/ 15
ENEL SPA V/R 2078

18 2.5 1,867,000 110.29| 2,059,103.02| 114.66| 2,140,737.66 1.99
11/24/78/EUR/ 11 24
ENEL SPA V/R 2076

19 6.625 1,175,000 | 140.58 | 1,651,762.14|138.75| 1,630,342.47 1.52
09/15/76/GBP/ 15
SOLVAY SA V/R 2168

20 4.25 1,200,000 | 115.73| 1,388,774.76| 124.64| 1,495,699.91 1.39
/PERP//EUR/
BHP BILLITON V/R 2077

21 6.5 989,000 | 146.37 | 1,447,639.45| 144.57| 1,429,757.64 1.33
10/22/77/GBP/ 10 22
VOLKSWAGEN INT 2168

22 2.5 1,185,000 118.71| 1,406,657.90| 115.55| 1,369,299.57 1.27
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 20
ACCOR SA V/R 2168

23 4.375 1,000,000| 112.89| 1,128,855.61|124.70| 1,246,985.99 1.16
/PERP//EUR/ 30
TOTAL SA V/R 2168

24 2.708 1,000,000 119.12| 1,191,155.91|121.71| 1,217,092.49 1.13
/PERP//EUR/
DANONE SA V/R 2168

25 1.75 1,000,000 111.46| 1,114,578.55|115.87| 1,158,728.99 1.08
/PERP//EUR/ 23
ORANGE SA V/R 2168

26 5.25 870,000 | 126.15| 1,097,485.96| 133.13| 1,158,193.76 1.08
/PERP//EUR/
GRAND CITY PRO 2167

27 2.5 1,000,000 121.12| 1,211,228.16|113.88| 1,138,799.99 1.06
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 10 24
NGG FINANCE V/R 2076

28 4.25 925,000 | 117.61| 1,087,893.10|117.86| 1,090,235.47 1.01
06/18/76/EUR/ 18
ARKEMA V/R 2167

29 2.75 900,000 | 112.61| 1,013,457.73|116.98| 1,052,797.82 0.98
/PERP//EUR/ 17
ELIA SYSTEM OP 2167

30 2.75 600,000 | 117.11 702,684.95] 119.98 719,887.40 0.67
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 12
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2018 2019
2018 28 62,318,176.00 6,717,276,191 10.44 1,125
2019 28 47,211,429.00 5,088,919,932 10.02 1,080
2018 58,972,153.46 6,356,608,421 10.24 1,104
57,272,429.00 6,173,395,122 10.17 1,096
55,400,502.02 5,971,620,113 10.16 1,095
10 51,645,752.20 5,566,895,630 9.98 1,076
11 49,484,180.74 5,333,899,842 9.69 1,044
12 47,521,688.53 5,122,362,807 9.57 1,032
2019 48,198,805.10 5,195,349,202 9.89 1,066
47,211,429.00 5,088,919,932 10.02 1,080
46,594,424 .86 5,022,413,056 10.10 1,089
43,969,265.97 4,739,447,179 10.23 1,103
42,238,430.82 4,552,880,458 10.10 1,089
42,421,355.39 4,572,597,897 10.41 1,122
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2018 28 9,393,871,563 10,313
2019 28 7,174,360,266 9,675
2018 8,910,127,742 10,024
8,315,328,669 9,939

8,185,381,850 9,916

10 7,704,940,135 9,726

11 7,384,851,305 9,424

12 6,994,195,342 9,280

2019 7,150,012,532 9,573
7,174,360,266 9,675

7,124,083,918 9,741

7,143,920,573 9,849

7,012,218,596 9,701

7,003,939,252 9,981
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0.27 29 225
0.36 39 300
2018 0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
10 0.03 3 25
11 0.03 3 25
12 0.03 3 25
2019 0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
0.75 81 625
7.10 5.38
-0.57 -3.28
100x
10
10,000
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6,550,758 581,344 5,969,414
(6,550,758) (581,344) (5.,969,414)
436,038 1,691,451 4,714,001
(436,038) (1,691,451) (4,714,001)
1,018,701 107,794 910,907
(1,018,701) (107,794) (910,907)
101,095 270,488 741,514
(101,095) (270, 488) (741,514)
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2019 28
NB
2019 28
117,405,426 110,381,975 11,898,073
515 56
2,701,440 2,704,829 291,554
115,318 12,430
27,915 3,009
1,918,849 206,833
1,052,322 113,430
116,201,723 12,525,384
1,224,521 131,991
431,056 46,464
118,352 12,757
103,613 11,168
56,189 6,057
52,359 5,644
14,595 1,573
9,104 981
78 8
2,518,102 271,426
14,253 1,536
4,542,222 489,606
111,659,501 12,035,778
118,239,600 12,745,046
(2,055,556) (221,568)
3,966,318 427,529
(8,490,861) (915,230)
111,659,501 12,035,778
7,174,360,266
741,514 9,675
47,211,429
4,714,001 10.02 1,080
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NB

2019 28

5,044,434 543,740
5,044,434 543,740
853,798 92,031
853,797 92,031
211,184 22,764
99,440 10,719
65,677 7,079
22,922 2,471
19,703 2,124
4,145 447
76,765 8,274
2,207,431 237,939
2,837,003 305,801
(2,031,260) (218,950)
7,915,421 853,203
5,884,161 634,254
(10,987,180) (1,184,308)
(4,676,937) (504,127)
(15,664,117) (1,688,435)
(9,779,956) (1,054,181)
(6,942,953) (748,381)
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NB

2019 28

2,837,003 305,801
5,884,161 634,254

(15,664,117) (1,688,435)

(6,942,953) (748,381)

(2,281,649) (245,939)

(2,003,530) (215,960)

(4,285,179) (461,899)

101,095 9,479,050 1,021,747
436,038 4,481,179 483,026
270,488 (24,373,932) (2,627,266)
1,601,451 (17,052,748) (1,838,116)
(27,466, 451) (2,960,609)

(38,694,583) (4,170,889)

150,354,084 16,206,667

111,659,501 12,035,778
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2019 28

(6,942,953) (748,381)
(82,720,942) (8,916,490)
103,153,501 11,118,916

2,638 284
2,189,032 235,956
10,987,180 1,184,308
4,660,611 502,367
(170,914) (18,423)
41,618 4,486
634 68

2,591 279
54,484 5,873
(3,117) (336)
(18,116) (1,953)
(2,848) (307)
(37,019) (3,990)
78 8

12,754 1,375

31,209,212 3,364,041

14,901,473 1,606,230
(41,326,837) (4,454,620)

(4,285,179) (461,899)
(30,710,543) (3,310,289)

498,669 53,752

2,206,675 237,857

2,705,344 291,609
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2019 28
2019 28 2019 28
10,313 10.44 1,125
214 0.22 24
(552) (0.28) (30)
(338) (0.06) (6)
(300) (0.36) (39)
9,675 10.02 1,080
(3.29) (0.54)
7,174,360 47,211 5,088,874
1.65 1.72
® 2.16 2.16

@
&)
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NB
2019 28
(@D)
98.9
3.1
3.1
BHP Billiton Finance Ltd.
2,850,000 4.75% due 04/22/76 3.1 3,502,598
3,502,598
3,502,598
1.5
1.5
Elia System Operator S.A.
600,000 2.75% due 12/05/23() 0.6 689,921
Solvay S.A.
800,000 4.25% due 03/04/24®M 0.9 961,436
1,651,357
1,651,357
9.6
9.6
Enbridge, Inc.
5,909,000 5.50% due 07/15/77 5.0 5,461,964
360,000 6.00% due 01/15/77 0.3 352,784
Transcanada Trust
5,115,000 5.30% due 03/15/77 4.2 4,756,950
100,000 5-88% due 08/15/76 0.1 99,500
10,671,198
10,671,198
3.1
3.1
Orsted AS®
3,100,000 2.25% due 11/24/17 3.1 3,449,698
3,449,698
3,449,698
10.0
10.0
Accor S.A.
2,000,000 4.38% due 04/30/24® 2.1 2,348,314
Danone S.A.
100,000 1.75% due 06/23/23%) 0.1 110,169
Engie S.A.
5,800,000 1.38% due 04/16/23 5.6 6,307,325
Orange S.A.
870,000 5.25% due 02/07/24® 1.0 1,113,225
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Q)
Solvay Finance S.A.
100,000 5.87% due 06/03/24(M 0.1 128,977
TOTAL S.A.
1,000,000 2.71% due 05/05/23M 1.1 1,192,788
11,200,798
11,200,798
10.4
10.4
Bayer AG
5,298,000 2.38% due 04/02/75 5.3 5,949,127
Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA
100,000 3.00% due 04/23/75 0.1 115,217
EnBW Energie Baden-Wuerttemberg AG
4,565,000 3.63% due 04/02/76 4.9 5,420,169
Evonik Industries AG
100,000 2.13% due 07/07/77 0.1 113,016
11,597,529
11,597,529
1.7
1.7
Enel SpA
232,000 2.50% due 11/24/78 0.2 253,660
1,175,000 6.63% due 09/15/76 1.5 1,668,361
1,922,021
1,922,021
1.1
1.1
Grand City Properties S.A.
1,000,000 2.50% due 10/24/23M 1.0 1,064,115
SES S.A.
100,000 4.63% due 01/02/22(%) 0.1 118,425
1,182,540
1,182,540
15.7
15.7
Telefonica Europe BV
6,100,000 2.63% due 06/07/23M 6.0 6,679,827
TenneT Holding BV
100,000 3.00% due 06/01/24( 0.1 115,218
Volkswagen International Finance NV
1,285,000 2.50% due 03/20/22(1) 1.3 1,444,573
3,600,000 2.70% due 12/14/22) 3.6 4,020,080
4,900,000 3.88% due 06/14/27® 4.7 5,279,291
17,538,989
17,538,989
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(@)
2.1
2.1
Fastighets AB Balder
1,000,000 3.00% due 03/07/78 1.0 1,101,134
Volvo Treasury AB
960,000 4.85% due 03/10/78 1.1 1,194,606
2,295,740
2,295,740
26.6
26.6
NGG Finance PLC
6,495,000 5.63% due 06/18/73 8.3 9,224,292
SSE PLC
1,600,000 2.38% due 04/01/21(M 1.6 1,819,349
SSE PLC
9,110,000 4.75% due 09/16/77 7.9 8,792,280
Vodafone Group PLC
8,925,000 3.10% due 01/03/79 8.8 9,858,793
29,694,714
29,694,714
14.0
14.0
Energy Transfer operating LP
3,851,000 6.63% due 02/15/28(%) 3.1 3,504,410
Enterprise Products Operating LLC
610,000 4.88% due 08/16/77 0.5 552,218
7,000,000 5.38% due 02/15/78 5.4 6,127,415
NextEra Energy Capital Holdings, Inc.
4,290,000 4.80% due 12/01/77 3.4 3,753,750
NiSource, Inc.
1,800,000 5.65% due 06/15/23(M 1.6 1,737,000
15,674,793
15,674,793
117,405,426 110,381,975
117,405,426 98.9 110,381,975
1.1 1,277,526
100.0 111,659,501
(12,035,777,613 )
@
(@) 3017 11 24
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Citibank NA
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Brown Brothers
Harriman & Co.
Brown Brothers
Harriman & Co.
Brown Brothers
Harriman & Co.
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation

339,420
284,875
23,641
4,125,066

863,210
72,301
388,124
1,043,458
250,137
1,042,901
942,000
450,000
600,000

1,800,000

10,607,589
797,215
316,698
513,538
646,425
428,773

49
296,082
69,289,104

823,059
32,622
516,297
3,176,500
368,760

389,585

2019
2019
2019
2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019
2019
2019
2019
2019
2019
2019
2019
2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019
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16
16
16
16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16
16
16
16
16
16
16
16
16

16

16

16

16

16

16

(386,727) 1,223
(322,777) 2,829
(27,479) (458)
(4,769,315) (54,447)
(983,579) 3,053
(82,445) 194
(443,541) 77
(1,206,720) (14,068)
(287,747) (1,846)
(942,000) (63,830)
(1,206,076) 49,769
(4,067) (24)
(5,423) (33)
(16,268) (98)
(8,265,708) (411,987)
(687,385) 11,548
(273,917) 3,617
(448,609) 787
(560,512) 5,771
(375,709) (655)
(5,324) 1
(225,579) (4,653)
(59,929,392) 791,013
(716,438) 4,185
(28,208) 380
(455,395) (4,211)
(2,753,258) 29,581
(322,790) (183)
(341,378) (603)
346,932
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Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs

Royal Bank of Canada

Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Citibank NA
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs

Goldman Sachs

State Street Bank

and Trust Co.
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation
Westpac Banking
Corporation

7,343,516,569
53,321,700
44,959,700
52,850,352
42,757,875
47,837,876
18,580,535
27,798,330
32,500,112

2,209,494
18,301,995
31,117,714

2,203,592

2,204,879

110,347,020

706,946
3,236,135
171,249
270,131
279,294

183,417
171,909
250,382
168,830
82,760
164,025
20,111
81,555
123,904
513
243,393

57,688

2019
2019
2019
2019
2019
2019
2019
2019
2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019
2019
2019
2019
2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019
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16
16
16
16
16
16
16
16
16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16
16
16
16
16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

(68,066,048)
(495,717)
(412,827)
(492,181)
(394,913)
(439,221)
(171,737)
(251,413)
(297,586)

(20,026)
(165,920)
(282,041)

(20,218)

(20,248)

(1,027,353)

(76,172,450)
(349,140, 486)
(18,427,952)
(29,209,029)
(30,688, 855)

(20,269, 200)
(18,724,489)
(27,221,830)
(18,608,422)
(9,130,336)
(17,909,769)
(2,189,981)
(8,865,094)
(13,493,128)

(55,753)
(26,144,597)

(6,357,780)

(1,860,106)
(14,992)
(7,490)
(15,705)
(9,426)
(7,935)
(4,223)
(796)
(4,579)

(106)
(917)
(1,497)
(352)
(370)

(32,512)

20,208
88,437
5,111
6,795
2,616

678
3,098
4,962
1,065

445
2,559

367
1,632
2,256

11
7,685

369

(1,812,712)
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NB
2019 28
2016 12 16
2012 10 15
2009 a CIMA
2017 22
LLC
CIBC
UFJ PB
FASB ASC

946

GAAP
GAAP
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12

GAAP

2019 28
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2019 28
110,381,975 110,381,975
1,052,322 1,052,322
111,434,297 111,434,297
2019 28
2,518,102 2,518,102
2,518,102 2,518,102
FASB ASC 740
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72 12,796,961 57 8,966,116
36
24,193,382 69 927,019

)
)
)
() ) )

2018 28 88,035,908 62,318,176 150,354,084
9,479,050 4,481,179 13,960,229

(24,373,932)  (17,052,748)  (41,426,680)

(2,281,649)  (2,003,530)  (4,285,179)

(6,411,305) (531,648)  (6,942,953)
2019 28 64,448,072 47,211,429 111,659,501
2018 28 910,907 5,969,414 6,880,321
101,095 436,038 537,133
(270,488)  (1,691,451)  (1,961,939)
2019 28 741,514 4,714,001 5,455,515
2019 28 86.91 10.02
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10.00
10,000
10

2019 28
2019 28 431,056

10

2017
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ASC  815-10-50

a b
c
ASC 815
ISDA 1SDA
1SDA
2019 28 MNA
MNA
(O]

Citibank NA 21,431 21,431
Goldman Sachs 918,525 (918,525)
State Street Bank And Trust Co. 678 678
Westpac Banking Corporation 111,688 (111,688)

1,052,322 (1,030,213) 22,109

2019 28 MNA
MNA
(O)

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 155 155
Goldman Sachs 2,392,873 (918,525) 1,474,348
Royal Bank of Canada 4,579 4,579
Westpac Banking Corporation 120,495 (111,688) 8,807

2,518,102 (1,030,213) 1,487,889

@
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2019 28
1,052,322 2,518,102
2019 28
8,039,097 (4,660,611)
0.65
0.30 0.35
2019 28
853,798 2019 28 56,189
0.08 2.5
0.07 2.5
0.06
80,000
0.015
15,000 2019
28 19,703 2019 28 14,595
0.05
2019 28 65,677
2019 28 9,104
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2019
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118,352

FATCA/CRS

1970

2019
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2019 28
12
13

2019 28
2019 2019 26 1,174,845
4,470,606 657,440
2019 2019 26 286,825
6,479,525 522,599
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NEUEB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

February 28, 2009

(Expressed In United States Dollar, unless otherwise indlcated)
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AssetE

Bttt in pecurited, 8% value (oot of USD 117 405,426

Ly

Formign currendy, ot value foo s ef USD 3,.701,440)

R pail vy For Mrvigbimicitd sald

A pomivable for Units inned

Eriberenl recnivable

Unireatized appredation on forwaerd Torelgn curency exdhange contracts
Tital srmate

Uabilitizs

Paywble for investranis purcheoed

Pyyable for Uindty edaemad

Arcreed distribuber’s foms

Aserugd proleeies ol lews

Accnagd mansgmment b

Acorard ourody and Bk adminfarstors fees
Accrd rueRes fees

Actnoad agent cenpbey s Dot

Acenaed reglstration fees

Ueewallped deprisd ation on larveard Torelgn surmendy exdh arge sontracti
Otrar ahdlte

Tt | lsbllties

W Assets Atiributabda to Uretholdws

écnabyzis of Not Aoty

Paidin cagltal

Aroumalsind dsifboions in escess of net insastment ncome

Acsuireuluted st resned Fam an v iment snd faneign curressy irir o wd faewied
fermigr: currency mecharge coniracty

et wernsized depredation oninestments snd foreign carenoy transactions end forwerd foreign
TRy EnChrePE [N T

W dgsats Attrbutabda to Urathel das

Wak Apsat Value por Unit
AT Class IPY T174,360, 366 + 71,514 Lini s outstarsding ]

LD Cluss LAD AT, 211,405 4+ 4 M18,001 Undts outstanding)

LD 110,380,975
51%

2 T0,EZT

115,318

1’15

1, BMEE4D

] LPF]

116,300,733

1,209,521
d3L,056
118,352
103,643

36,189
52,358
14,555
#104

E

1EIE 102
14,253
a5 3,133

(1] AL 301
.7+ ] 118,333,600
{2085,556)

3,366,318

8,430,651
LISD AL 201

SETE
10,83

S

The @ccompanying notes are an integral part of these Ainancial statements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2019
(Expressed In United States Dollar)

I rrand Inconsar
Britarirst LD 5044438
Totel Irvesirrant Ircome —_— S
E e
bl anageraent S 53,798
Distribidor's fwes LY, AT
Cirtadian o sub -l il sroneee ' i FLLLES
Pretessiorisl fors 3440
Agent company's fees SN
Transfer agent fees a0
Trutive b o E]
Regivirafon fwex d, 145
R D D 75, M55
Tabsl Expirds J
Hat | rwsasbmant Inonma LBIT003
Reakized and Une asheed Guing/[Loses)
Roalized galn g losse |
irrtren T I e e (2,038,260
Forelgn owrrency ranmctions and forward forelan ourrensy mchang e conitrachi 5421
Pt rmad P g 500 161
Charyge in ued eallied sggrpintion| depredatian)
st i spaarfe (10367, (60)
Fomeign currendy ran sctfions and foreand foneign oo enoy madhange contrads [d 6 h6,537)
Pt chiarge n unresll o deprecistion [15664,110
Mt realfed aed unredlioed lomes 43, 7P 850}
Het d i ot nasats redulting fromn oparet LFSD [5,942,553]

The @ccompanying notes are an integral part of these Ainancial statements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2019
{Expressed In United States Dollar)

Iner gz [Decreasa) in Wk beeots from:

Opeer stione
Mgt investrmenit Incame LS LEIT009
et reaboed guing 5B 1Y
Mel chrgs in v ealined depreciation 115664107
Mol docrbind in rat Siae b reiul tng from apanstiani E,M?."l“!
Bimributions to Unitholdars
197 Qass (2,281 843y
U0 Qe 12,005,550
Tatsl Cissibutiend [ 173

Capital Transadions:

Units i smaed
1P Qs (101,095 Undis| SATA050
LISD Oy (435,038 Unid) 4,481,179
Units redwemed
1P Olaeis [P0, 488 Lindes| 24,373,537
U50 Qeps [ 1,554,451 Uinlt) [LRO5R EY
et decreas in net e bs read ting from capltal trecsactions 2R AE6 AR
Total Deoresse in Mk Aprets 138,654, 585)
Het Azzcte
Bagirning o yow 150.3
Evd e your USD  1LLGY3S5L

The @ccompanying notes are an integral part of these Ainancial statements.
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended February 218, 2019
{Expressed In United States Dollar)
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Cush Flimars from spar fting scthitieg:

Nyt dibtriiae bn et sdiath vl Ung om apeisfiani

Adpurirnents Lo reconile the net decrenss in net Basets resulting frorm operstiorn 1o net caah provided by

opersting sdiities:
Purghase of imvestments

Proomds froms safe wnd maduetty of invesmenis
et smorti natton end {acoretion] of premiums end dlsounts-on corpor ate debt oblgatons ard shart ferm

HrESL IS
Auniled loss on Fvestrarsin mousife

Charge in worgalToed depredatfon on frvestirnends

Chargpe bn wrreaiToed depradwtfon on forwand fomsign oerency shange contracks

Chang o n azeats and Hakilitiar salated to oporations:

Ericreaae i infenest recelvable
Dy wion In propald simts
Deaeme in other et

DT in aocroed oustodisn snd adeinisstor’s ees

Dipdraasg in accrond probinsionsl lees
Erirwge b acirued trusbees fees

Enor e in soorued manag pmaen fees
bngr e e accorued agenit company's fees
by piie in acorued O sifbuto”s fes
Dby mlisie [ nig bt athan femn

Derwine in socroed o Habllities

Het cash provided by oparsting acthdtie:

CachFlows uead in finsnang adivities
Procmsdi frarm Linic aaed
PgpmimtianUnlissedesmad
Dstrtbautions pafd fo Linltholders

Wt cash wad in finandng acthities

Nak insraasain @ph end faralpn asr ancy

Loy anddl foriigne curs iy mt Biggin ndeg ol year

Cush amd Forsigm aurrency st and of yaar

LED 16,08 2.554]

{EL TR0
103,158 808

el ]
1052
1G0E7, 180
A BR0ATY

(LR 20d)
41608
(5]
2551
B
[EAHE
18118
(e
LELLEL]
k]

L1754

— BN

14,301,473
11,326,837
o708, 1 71

— )

. R
330 575

um_ s

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Anancial statements,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the Year Ended February 18, 2019

Selected Per Unit Data and Ratlos

(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)

P flasz 50 Claee
Fortha Yaar Erced  Fov tha Year Ended

Fabrusry 28, 2018 Fabrusry 3, 2018

Mgt Azm Valus, Baginning of year Iy 1,313 USD T
Net imvestrnent frcome™! 214 0,22
Sop) riskerdd and Ll ped Lo 1551 i0.29
Mot dietriads in nEC S5 E1 AUl Ting from apenationm [11-] [T
Lein din i bond 43 4038
et Awmt Value, end of year Y 9,675 LD 10.83
Yatal reburn 4 5 LR
Rutiog Seplimment sl dits:

Mot st wvd of yirer {000'%) it FiRa a0 LsD AT

Rt of enpente 1o v 2 na? see 1B LT

Ratio of net Invesiment iome Inuﬂrmndnuhn 2165 216%

™ Colzadiatind isiling dvein i LIPS butitanding far thir ya.
™ Caloulated on an annual basls,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Anancial statements,
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTOLIO OF INVESTMENTS

February 28, 2019

{Expressed In United States Dollar)
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Currerey  fmount STy Das ipkion

usn
usp

U
L]

Principal

LE0000

i ]

EL00

S0 000
360,000

5,115,000
100,000

1,100,008

L0000
ple ]
5 ELO0
B0
L

Lo00.000

0000
100,800
4,505,000

pl ]

132,000

% of Nt
Aggats Falr Walua
FRAEL | NCOHAE SECURITIES [38.9%)
AUSTRALA [3.1%]
CORPORATE BOMDS. & MOTES [1.1%)

EMF Bil fton Franoe Lid,

.75 due D4/ LG L% v AshLueE
TOTAL CORPORKTE BOMOS B HOTES o isireeE
TivTAL ALSTTRALIA L ishpeAE

BELCIINA | 1,5%)

CORPORATE BOMDS & NOTES [1.5%)

s Syitemn Dpsrater T4

2.7 due 12,108,335 nE 80,91

Soivary 5.4,

4155 due D30 2™ e 6143
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMDS B MOTES 1,651,357
TOTAL BRLGLIM LEs1 s

CAMADA [3E%)

CORPORATE BOMDS. B MOTES (9. 5%)

Enkridge, e

= due BT 1405 S a8 BA6

B0 tue D115 o3 BRI

Tra reicruneia Trust

5,300 due 031577 ag 4756950

55 due DR 1576 ol G500
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS B MOTES LB 138
TOTAL CAMADA, 1,671, 158

DERMARE {315
CORPORATE BOMNDS B MOTES [3.1%)

et A5

24 due 11T AT 11 L4400
TOTAL (ORPOEATE ROMDS R MOTES AL ESE
TOTAL DEMMSARY 3,449,658

FRANCL [1000%)

COOARA TE B OO & MOFTES (100G

Aoer SA

4.38% due 0430245 1 1348314

Danone 5.4,

3.75% dus DEILR T ol lioes

Eage A

1334 due 416237 56 £.307,91%

Crange 5.4

5154 due D207 24 10 1113325

Sohvay Frunce §.4,

5.5 T thoe 05/03,245 %] 128977

TOTALS.A

2.72% due 05/ 23 11 L193.733
TOTAL COMPORATE BOMOS & HOTES 11,300, 8
TOTAL FRAKCE 11 o]

GERMANY {10.0%]

CORPORATE BONS. & MOTES [L0.4%)

Bayer A

2.5 dus DU a2l w127

Eerteumann S & Co, EGd

000 due D4/T305 (%] 115,217

ENEW Enavgie Eaten Wusrtiembeng AG

3P due DAMLTE ag SA0EY

Ewnnik Incuntries &G

2.1 Wi o ST %] 11RME
TOTAL COHPORATE BONCS & NOTES 11807835
TIOTAL GERMALNY 11,587,535

ALY [1.7%]

CORPORA TE SOMS. & NOTES [1.7%)
EnelSpa,
2500 due 13124 72 V%] 53,560

The epcompanying notes are an integral part of these finencial statements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTOLIO OF INVESTMENTS (continued)
February 28, 2009

{Expressed In United States Dollar)

Principal % of Nt
Currensy  Amount Sacurity Desaiption Asssts Fair Walua
FIRARH INCEHSY SECURITTIES |, 9% s onbimsed |
FIALY [1,7%] fsontisund)
COMPORATE BIORDS & NOTI (1, Pp joontinued )
(Ul 11950080 G5 T due D15 ME iay LR LEaR G
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMCE & MOTES 1325031
TOTAL ITALY !:'!!!';ﬂ_l
RLINESIHOURRG | 115
COMPORA TE BOMDS R MOFTES (1.1%)
Grand Oy Prapenmied SA,
EE LO00.000 2,500 tue 1034 13 19 1068 11%
SES S
211 100000 A6 due OLNDLAI™ ol 118435
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMDS B MOTES 1EBL 54D
TOTAL LLECER BOLVLG hlﬂﬁ
METHERLARGS (15 e
CORFORATE BONDA R MOTES (157
Telelonlca urags IV
UK EIDMOOD 25 dusDEMT R &9 5EFDALT
TerneT Halding BV
(111 lonpoo 3000 due DE/TLRA™ 1 115313
ool kg I B onald Finamioe N
(L1 LH0 1300 dus DN I0RIY 8} LakasT)
R 1,600,000 2,708 dus 313,714 3% 18 4,000,080
(L1 4,500,000 323 due D512 7 a7 5.175,291
TOTAL COHPORATE BONOE & MOTES H’&
TOTAL NETHERLANDS i?&!
SWEDEN [L1%)
CORPORATE BONDS & NOTI (2.1%)
Fastighats A8 Exider
EUR Lonao00 300 dur DT R 19 LINLIM
Wahva Trewtory &8
(LH OO0 S5 dus DU 10MTE 1l L1046
TOTAL COMPORATE BONDA & NOTES 1,26, M
TOTAL SWEDEN T35 M
WM MED KNRGDDM |55 B%)
CORPORATE BOMNDS £ NOTES [26.6%)
MGG Franze PLC
GEF BAOS0O00  SU6¥ due DSMI8T3 a3 LEFERCH
S5 PLE
[EH LA .30 due 4000 1Y i LELA R
Ui 110000 A, TN due DN 1ESTT L] ST12E0
Worfal e Greup PLT
EUR 5000 310% due D037 a8 0.3n8 793
TOTAL COHPORATE BONDA & NOTES LML TIA
TOTAL URITED KikG Do w?“
RINITHD STATES (14.4%%)
CORPOATE BOMDA & MOTES [L4.0%)
Enerpy Trarder operaling LP
uin LR 66 due D115, 11 LA )
il i g Prociedty et LS
us 10000 4.55% dus DAF16/T7 1% S5L213
usp TAO00,00 5.38% due 0211578 5.4 6.12741%
Pt 3 Enripy Capitsl Halsngs, e
L1 k) 4,190,000 508 due 12000177 314 3LFa 0
Ffour ca, Inc,
uin LENO00 S due 0415/235 L6 L Ao
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMOS B MOTES 1]
TOTAL URITED STATES ]
TOTAL FEED INCOREE SECURTTES [Cost VB0 7815.416) 119,381 975
TOTAL INVESTRENTS [Cowt LISOT1T A05 418 ot WESD B0, 3810, 975
Cadkn AND OTHER AS527T5 04 EXCESS OF LARR ITIES a1 L stk
NET ASSETS 10050 D 111 1

" prnetenl seouty. Mty dse e entne e Rnn Uhe ree ool date

" iipbiamty dwie o thef shourn A L AFARAT,

The epcompanying notes are an integral part of these finencial statements.
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

PORTOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued)

February 28, 2009

(Expressed in United States Dollar)
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el Lissl Farvrneel Fovsipn Durversy Exclamga Codrir sets

M otinal Hattlamant
Bary Cownter S Date
[ itk MA FE [T
EUR G e S 284,875 o1/ 2019
ER disnichemaen Sad il 0af16/201%
FUR Sigidman fadm i, 135066 G160
[L119 Wirikpie flirking Corparalion LLUSS D160
(LIS Wil Barking T aEan 2301 04162013
FiR ‘Wedpac Barking Conparakion IEE 13 o410
EUR ‘Wekpac Barking Corporalion LaAIsE oqf16fm e
TR Wetnac Barking Corperalion oAk B4 IER01%
ot Whestase Harming Corparatisn 1042901 S IENMS
G Wiettp s Banking Conporaian 947, OO0 D4/162019
Py [Beoren Evokhers Hanriman & Co 50,000 mjorama
P [Brown Eepthers Harriman & Cn G000 03f1f2019
ar I s (e ity Wi man & o, 1E00000 CRSLA0Ie
wio ol er Saetrl 30,607 550 D160
L% 1) Gsbdirmae Sac 97215 DefGfIma
i ol Sadi L5, /1652000
U faldran Sadn 513,55 D42
(- ] Gnkdran Sad [ C4f16f2ma
i Goldrean Sadht AI87T 0d/1652008
Wy il Sachi & G160
e Galgiran Saghi 08D O/16f2000
A kT Satn 2.2 1 Def16/2019
[P ] ‘Wedkpac Barking Conporalion #3059 DAfLEf01
[Fi1r] ‘Wedtpac Barking Corporafion Tl 0af 162019
L5 1] WiaEnac Barklrg Corparalion sigm L1600
[1%1:] Whe lase Mk g Torpralian 3176500 D160
(151 Wedipac Barking Corparalian I6E D aMane
(- Westpac Barking Corporakion 33,50 GafERme

Sall

[0
wEn
e
i
i
L
L U
wE
wan
aEP
U
D
e
v
aEF
EUR
R
EUR
EUR
EUR
wr

aur
EUR
EUR
EUR
LU
R
EUR
EUR

s I

At
385737} [ET) 1313
[EFrE ] 1LH1%
TaraATy [ama}
e 15) |5.4a7)
[RETLR T LmE
{E2845) 1
[243.541) "
b2ty (3800}
[FEEE L] 11A48)
000 |ERA 3N
11 206,076) 45,75
0BT 24
AT i3
L6.268) ]
{B26%,F0A) #11.9a7)
[BET3E5) 11548
[23.017) hE1Y
[24%.E09) =Y
[LTE S B 5771
[EE %] (655
[ Fo ] 1
[2ERAT aB53)
138.329.352) nLNI
[F15A3E) a5
i) D
[A8NES) S]]
HELES-ECT] 8581
32750y (L3}
[(341.378) (B3]
LT N 1Y

Tha sccompanying notes are o intagral part of these finandal statemants,
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTOLIO OF INVESTMENTS (continued)
February 28, 2019

{Expressed In United States Dallar)
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IPY Clase Fy d Fordgn £ v Exchangs ©

Mot Unraalized

Motioral  Bettlamaent HNotsoral Appraiation

g Coantarpary Amourt Date Eall . 3 [Depracintion]
wrt it dmn Sac LMASIATEY GNP SR066.0E8) w0 [LAS0,1061
w sl thery Sueir B MEAMY Ui [amrL) 118097)
W Gl s S ASED DAMERNY U (412 837 |A00)
Y Gt theran Sacin S3ER0.352 1M wE (282 181) 115,705)
L il cheran S 43,757 475 oqfImE uin el k] ]
e Gldman Sacht ATENTATG CAMIER0IY  wEn GRS L]
W e theren Saety 18,580,538 4MEIMS Ui LN R
W G thevien S ,FE3E DAMIERMI USD 251,413} 96}
WY Ryl Bank of Carada 32,500,112 162ME  UsD (297586 573
WY ‘Winiknac Barking Corporalion Limam MIREME U [rati ] LA}
w Winitnac Barking Corporaiion IRWLM  DAIAENE WD (s E ] min
i WiriRaae Mirking Torpaeation MURTE  DEAMY Ui [2B2.041) [L49m
i Wi B g A Ee s LIRS 4MEAME  UsE [20.218) (1
Y Wistknac Barking Corpaeakion Lifaars 04ERME  UsD [20.288) 30y
P ‘Wekpac Barking Corporakion 130,387,000 o4f16Rme U Laarssiy 133552}
LE Ciibank MA, 00, [ U LTk B |PRA7 A 0,800
win Gl dheran Sy LIIa1bE GBS R (RAADAES BEALY
(5 Goldman Sach 1A ofEIme e FEEFEE L] %111
s Galdegn Sadh 1maM GLANME Y 282000 6P
[ Gatrae Sac 27 GHALEIME Y |30 EREHS) LEIG
15 ) Stube Srawt Bank snd Tl o 183,417 04/152M Y 120269200 (25 ]
[ ) ‘Wietknao Barking Conpoealiion 171908 0AREMI Y [ 187244804 3
e Wieinac Barking Corporatiion. 1503 UYLk | FEFFFVEE ] A0
L Wikipac Hirkl g Corporilion, IERAN)  OAMAAMS v [1BAGEA R 1,065
[0 Wiriase flarking Dorparation ALY D4MIGIR W [9.830,536) L]
15 1) Whepae Harking Conporalion 64,005 AERME IR | 17,909 763} 1559
s Wietkipac Barking Corparstion 20,111 04/ IE2MS I FAEEEE E 2
(B4 Winiknac Barking Corporaliion BLSES  OAMIREMI R LR 1032
i WieiRps Rarking Gorparalion pris ] GAMALEMY Y [ahAdk1ing Lise
[15] WirRake Barking Corporalian 13 DRMERMY Y {55 153) 1
15 ) Wi tRpae Barking Corpralion 243,39 D4LEME Y |26,284.557) 585
(B3] Wietknae Barking Conpiealiion STEEE  DAMIEROI  MEY 1B35T. 78 353
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Currency lagerd
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The Sooompdnyng fobed are o intaial part of thede finantia statemants,
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2009

ORGAMIZATION

NEUE Cerporate Hybrid Securitfes Fund (the "Fund™) is a series trust of the Miko AM Gifshore Funds, an cpen-anded unit
trust established by a supplemental trust dewd dated December 18, 2018 {the “Supplemental Trust Deed®), under the lows
of the Coyman Isdands, Mikko AM Offshore Funds was estabEshed by o master rust desd dated Ooober 15, 2042 [the
“Master Trust Deed®], under the laws of the Coyman Blands and I5 licensed with the Coyman Istland s Monetary Authority
pursuant to section S[1Ha) of the Mubual Funds Law (2006 Revision], The Fund commenced operations on February 132,
Flniir s

The Fund's asets are managed on a day to day barsis by Mido AM Global Cayman Linfted [the “Manager®). The Manager
defegares irvestmant management dutes o Nkko Asssr Managerment Co, Led, (e “westment Manager®), The
Irvesgment Manager delagates iInvesament management duties to Newberger Berman Imvestrient Adhvisers LS, [the “tub-
Irastrant Manager™], The adrnindstration of the Fund is delegated to Brown Brothers Hamirman & Ca, (the “Custedian®
and = Sub-Administraor”), a limited partnership organized under the laws of the State of New Fork,

Tha investment cbjective of the Fund is 1o achieve a mid tolong term tobad returm through incoms and capital appredation,
The Series Trust shall mainly imvest in both imvestrment grade and non-imvestment grade hybrid securities that are issued by
o Sinancial conporake [ssuers and have been rased by efther of Moody's, SEP or Rtch, The Mighest rating from all tes of
these agencies shall be appitad to sadh corporate hybrid security and the aversge rating of the portfclic shall be BES-/Band
o above.

Corporate ybrid debt securites ane structured instremen ts that combine both equity and Reed income characterfsics that
generally offer a means for issers to bomovwe money from nvestors inretum for interest payments, Such corporate [ssoers
may Wlipe Fyorid debt for a varlety of reasons, induding bolstering thalr capital levels, lowering their weighted sverage
cost of capital, diversifying thelr funding scurces and managing credit ratings. Though terms and conditions hawe become
Encreansingly standardized, the specific characterisfios of each instrument [such a3 paymentccondidions, the rado of debr and
equity-fige features, dme frames and applicable rates) can vany.

The Series Trust may alss irvesz in fixed and foatng rate debt secwrides, induding bonds, Tssued by governmenss and
g owermment related entities,

Cerivative nstrumentswill be used for efficient porfolio management and)for investment purposes onby.

The =sets of the Series Trust may be held in one or more comendes, and the Seres Trust will, in prindiple, engage in
cwrrency hedging betwesn the curmency of denomination of each Qass (LS, Dolfar for USD Class and Japaness Yen for JFY
Oass) and the oarrency of the Investments iin the undesdying porticiio, prowided, howewer, that such hedging for 1FY Cass
nrury be paricomad through the LS. Dollar,

Linder tha terms of the Supplamental Trust Deed and thie Master Trust Deed, QIBC Bank and Trust Comparry (Cayman)
Lirrited {the “Trustes™ and the “Administrater”] Isnamed as Trustes of the Fund.

The Massger sppainted Mitsbishi UF) Morgan Stacdey PB Securities Coy, Lbd 1o act &8 Agent Covparny (the “Agent
Company™) and the Manager appoinied Mitsubishi UR) Morgan Stanley PB Securities Co,, bd oo act as Distributor [the
“Cistributer”) of Linits in Jagan o such other person o institution & msy be appcinted &3 distributer of the Sedes Trest by
the Marager from time oo s,

SUMBAARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES

The Fund is 8n investment Company that follows the accounting and reparting guidance in FASE Acccunting Standands
Codificadon #44,

Lire ef Estimates

Tha sctompanying firandal stastemants have been prapared in socordance with sccounting prindples generslly accen tad in
the Uriined Saates of Armerdca ("LL5 GAAFT), The preparaton of Tnancial statementsin acordance with LL5 GAAP requires
the Furkd’s managerment to mike sstimates and assurnpitions thae affect the reported amountsof assets and lisbilides and
disclosres of contingant assets and liabilites st the date of the finandal satements and the reported amounts of
renriues and axperies during the reporting period. Actusl results, induding the utimate amount redlized upon the mle of
far walued investments, could differ from shose estimates and such Eiferances may be sgnilficant,
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2009

SUMBARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES | continugad)

Bomis of Accounting

Security and contrachsa ransactions are recorded on o tradefcontract-dabe basis inberest income | recorded on an
affective Weld bass, net of any applicable withholding tad Interest spence and other expenses ane recor ded on an accnual
bads Reatized galns and |osses from security transactions are computed on the basls of the average oost of the securities
wid or covered. Changes in the widuation of imvestrments are recorded in the Statement of Operations as unrealized
appreciation or depreciation.

Valuation of lavestments

Bords gnd cther debt sacurities, nduding restricted sscuritias jother than short-term obligations but induding Heted
issues) are falr walued at their bt sale prics in the prindpal markst In which such sscoites are normally traded, on the
barss of valuations fumished by a pricing service, use of which has been approved by the nvestmeant Manager, or if no sale
hars cccumed, the bd price on the valuation date as prosided by brokerswhio are market malkers in the secunites. Al debt
securities with less than 12 months to maturity dates, In prindple shall be fair valued using an amortized cost effected by an
affective yeld acomudatedfamortizadion method (o their mabuity date with adjustrments based on ompasison with
market prices as reguired,

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value messurements and disclosures under ULS GAAF, the Fund
diachones e o valiue of it imwestrents in a hisrarchy that prioritizes the inputs b viluation tadhnicuses wied B megsre
the far walue. The hierardy gives the Kighest priodty towvaluations based upon uradusted quoted prices in active markets
lor identical assets or Habilities [Level 1 measurement] and the lowest prority to valustions based upon uncbaarvabls
inputs that are sgrificant to the valuation [Lewd 3 meamrements). The guidance establishes three levels of the Fair value
e archny o Follawws:

®  Lavel ] = Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for Identical Investrments that the Fund
s thie-alility o oo ess BT the rleadusdrment date:

= Level @ = Inpuls other than quoted prices that are sigrificant and cbsenvable for the asset o liability elther
diret By or indirécly, indwding inputs in markets that arenct consdared to be active;

®  Level 3=Irputs that are sgrificant and uncheenmbls,

Irgaats are used in apphying the varous valuation technigues and broadly refer 1o the assuemgions that markst pardopants
e b s valudti on dedsion s, incheding esmumptions about risk Enputs mey indude price information, spedfic snd broad
orecit data, liquidiny statistics, and other factors. A Financdal instrument's level within the Tar valus hisrarchy s based upon
the lowest level of sny irput that s sgnificant te the faie value messurement, However, the determination of what
comintes “oboenvable” reguires significant judgrment by the investmens Manager, The imesrment Menager considers
cibserwdle data o be market datm which s readly sadlable, regulorty disributed or updated, reflable and veri fable, not
proprietary, and provided by independent seurces that are actively imedved in the relevant markst. The categorization of a
Financlal instrument within the hierarchy is based wpon the pricing transparency of the Irstrement and dessnot necesanly
correspond bo the Irvestrment Manager's perceived risk of that irstrurant,

Irrvpimants whost valees ore based on the quated rrarket priced in active markets, and therefore classRad within Lavesl 1,
windd Imclude actively raded equities, certaln LS. government and soversign chigations, and certalin monsy market
smcurities The Imesrment Manager would not sdusl the quoted price for such instrurnents, ever in siustions where the
Fund held a laorge position and a sale could reasonaibly irpact the quoted price,

Irvasimants that trade in markets that are not considersd 1o be active, but are valwed based on quoted market prces,
dealer quatations or alternative pricdng sourors spported by chservable inputs are clessfied within Level 1. Thass indude

nvestimant-grace debt securites, shorttenm invesments and forward foreign currercy exchange conDracts As Levsl 2
Ewesbrrents indude pesitions that o e not traded in active merkets andfor are subject 1o transfer reltrictions, valustiong
oy Dl usted to reflact illiquedity and/for non-transferabilicy, wiidh are gensrally based on available market information,

Irmastmants dassifed within Level 3 hawe sigréficant uncboervable inputs, a6 they would vads infrequently, Leval 3
fnstrurnents would indude asset-backed securties and collsterslized morgage chiigations. As obsarvable prices are not
availabia for those securities, the Fund wiodd wies valiation technigues to derive the (i value,

The inguts o ra thadelogy used for waluing securities re not necrssanly an indication of the risk sseciaed with investing
in those securities
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2009

SUMBAARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |centinged)

Valuation of lnvestments [eontinued)

Tha following mide prasentd the finandal insruments carrisd on the Statement of Assets and Liabilites by caption and by
level within the valustfon herarchy as of February 18, I019. Further dessifications of the fnandal instruments are
presenbed in the Portfolio of inwestrments, There wers o rnovements batween levels during the yesr,

Aceotz st Fair Valua Fak Walua st
Lavel & Lova 2 Lavel3 Fabruary 3, 2019
Fiwwd Incom e Secur fties [ - UsD 110,381,975 s - US> LL038LATE
Foeveard Farsign Cusrancy
Exchare Contracts - L052,322 = LOSLI2Y
Total ] - UsD 193,434,797 LS - U 111A434,297
Limbilities 32 Fair Valus Fur Vakie st
Laovel 1 Laval 2 Lovd 3 February 3, 2019

Farwand Foreign Durrency

Exchurge Contracts L0 - LD 2,518,102 I - 1] 2,518,102
Total [ =6 Lalei0: Lo = mD SsiRl0r
Foreign Currensy Tronal ation

Mzets and Habllities beld in oumencies obher than United States Dollar (U507 or the “Functional Currency™) are transiated
to the Functional Currency at the rane of exchange prevafiing at the finandal staternent date. Inoorms and expenses ane
trandated ot the rate of excharge prevalling at the date on which the Income or expense s incumed, Realized and
unrealized gans and losses aridng on foreign curmency wansictons ane included in the Statement of Operagions in the
periad inwhich they oo,

The Furd does not isclate that portion of the resuts of operations remdiing from changes in foreign exchange rages on
vwestmants from the Ructustions arsing rom changes in market peoes of securites held, Sucdh Puchastons are induded
with the ret realized and unreall pad galn o |oss from Imestments.

Income Taxes

Uindar the curent faws of the Caymnan Idands, there are no incomess, withhiolding, capital gaing or other taxes payable by
e Fund. In certaln jurisdictions other than the Cayman idands, forefgn teees may be withheld at scurce on dividends and
interest received by the Fund. Capital gains derived by the Fund in such jurisdictions generaily will be exempt from foreign
Engomae o withholding Geoes af source, The Fund intends Do conduct it alfairs such that It will not be subject to incomes b
i ey jurisdicon, Asa rewlt, no prowision for income tawes has been made In the Snancial satements Unitholders may
b taxed on their proporonats shane of the Fund's e basis income based on thelr indvidua! croumances.

The Fund follows the authoritative gubdance on accounting for and disclosere of uncermainty in tax positons |Rnangal
Acocunting Standards Board ("FASE") - Accounting Standards Codificadion 7409, which reguines the Manager to determine
wheather a taxn podtion of the Fund is more likely than not to be sustsined upon eximination by the applicable tanng
authority, Induding resclution of any related appeals or litgation procrsses, bassd on the technical merits of the position,
For tax positions meeting, the more likely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognized in the: finondal staternents is
reduced by the langest benedlt that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized vpon wWiimabe setderment
with the rdevant taming authority. The Manager his determined that there is minimal or no effect on the finandal
statermaents being under this authoritative guidancs.

Forward Fordiga Curreney Exchonge Controcts

The Fund may énter into forward forsign currency =xchange contracts to hedge sganst foragn cumency excharge rate
rigs on all or & portion of non-Us0 denominated Imvestments or for effigient portfolio management purposes. When
enbaring into & forward foreign cumrenoy exchange contract, the Fund agrees to receive o deliver a fived quantity of
foreign currency for an agreed-upon price on an agreed future dabe, These contracts are valued dally, and the Fund®s net
equity therain, representing urreafized q:predaﬁcrﬂdmcmbm' on the contracts @ messured by the difference
between the forward foreign curency exchange rates at the dates of entry into the contracts and the forward rates &t the
raporting date, isincluded in the Statermnent of Assets and Lishilites Realired and unraslized gans and |osses sra indudad
in the Staterment of Operations.

These Instnemaents irvolwe market sk, credit risk, or both Kinds of fisks, Tn excess of the amount recognized in the
Statement of Assets and Uabllities. Risks arise from the possible inability of counterparties to mesat the terms of their,
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2009

SUBABMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLCIES [continued)

Forword Forelgn Curmency Enchonge Controoty {continued]

contracs and fram moement in currancy and securities values and interest rates in addition to the claes level hedging,
the Fund had resiizad gains of LSDE,966,116 on 72 forward foreign turrency exchangs contracts during the yesr with an
ayerage notonal of UBD 12,756,961 and an sverage Derm o maturity of 57 days. The Fund olso had realized losses of LISD
27,009 on 16 ferward fareign currency axchinga contracts hald ot the Class IPY Hadgad lawsl during tha year with an
meerage netional of UISD 24,193,382 and an averags term o maturiny of 69 days

Cash ond Fareign Curren &y
Cash and foreign curmency comgrises all currency held with Brown Brothers Hardman & o, and overnight and ather shory
tarm placernenis with cther finandal institons.

UNITS

The reat ssers of the Fund are divided into /2Y Qs Undts and USD Oass Units The Units are denominated in L anee Yen
ard Unitad Soates Collar, 1PY Oass Units and LED Class Linits are avalable 1o an sligible lmmestor whio is any person,
corporation of entity which is not [] & dtizen o resident of the LS, & parmerdhip organized o existing in the LIS, o any
Corperation, rust of cther ensity organi ped under the laws of or exdsting in the US; §il] resident o domicled in the Caynan
Idands [exduding ary object of a charitable trust or power or an exempted or non-resdent Cayman tdands company); ()
umable to wbscribe for o held Units without viclating appicable lews, o (W) & custedfan, nominee, or tnestes for any
person, corporation o entity described in (i) bo (ITT) at-owe,

Tha Manager mary determine toisses oneor mone classes of Units of the Fund without pricr notice o or wiitten consent of
e Unithald era,

Al of the net sssets atiributable to IPY Oass Units and LED Class Units are held by ane Unitholder,

1P Class USD {lass Totsl Fusd

Balance st Febraary 28, 2018 LD EROISS0E U0 GRS USD  E50,35408d
SubricrlpEiani durlng S yeir SATH0E0 4A4BLLTD 13,560,209
Bedemaiions durfrg the year (24,372,551 (1705 (4143880
Destributions [2,2B1,643] (2003550 14,755, 175)
M1 decresns in et St el ting from apenaiang [5:411,305] (531548 [5,342,953)
Bt Acmets af Py 28, 2019 UL} GLAB07) USD AXIILAMN  LED [1LESAS0L
Bumbeer of Lindes in fisue ot Februry 26, 2018 219,507 5,860414 L EE0,32 1
ety damd durieg ther Y 105,095 436,038 517,133
Uit rodwnmed dudng th ysor [FTO48E] [1,551,451) (1,561,939
Mumibies 0fUndts in fsme ok Febeuary 18 NS TALELA A, 714001 5455515
Mt Acset Vlue per Unit ot Febeuary 3, 2015 s 91 LUED 1002

Surbroriptions for Units

LISD Darss Lrits were first issusd b ar inigal iee price of LED 10,00 per Unic JPY Oss Units wane firsy isseed ot an inital
s price of JPF 10,000 per Unit. On and after Inidal cdosing day, the minimum inldal subscripton for LISD Oass Urits per
sl seriber i8 10 Uinits of moee, and in rrulbples of 1 Unit thevealter, The mirimurm inftial subseiiption for JPY Oess Units
per webscniber i51 Unitor mone, and inmuliiples of 1 Uinits therealier,

The Manager may wave of change the minfmum inftial and additonal sbscription amounts set farth abowe in it sole
diseration from tirmes o e,

Soles Charge
I addidon o the sbsription price, the applicant thall pay & sales charge caloulsted ot up 1o 3K (extiuding ary tax
applicable] of the purchass price, o the Gistributor.

Linft Redemptions
The Furd recogrepes rederrations in accondance with the authorinative guidere on dEstinguisheng liaksiides from equiny,
Readamptions, whather mpressed o2 United States Doller, Japanese Yan o Units, sre recogrised as lishifies when aach of
the United Staes Doller, Japaness Yen and Unit amcunts requested in the redemption notice becomes fized, which
generally may oocur aither at the time of the receipt of the notice, or on the last day of a Fschl year, depending on the
raature of the reguest As 8 resdt, redernptions paid after the end of the yaar, but based upon year and el akeels afe
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2009

UNITS |eentinuead)

Uiait Redemptions {continoed]
raflected &6 redergtions payable af February 28, 2019, There were USD 421,056 of redemptions payable as a1
February 28, 2019, inchaded i Peyable for Lints sedesrned in the Statement of Assats and Lisilites,

Repurcham e of Units

Each Lrsthodder rray redu e & repurchise of Urits by the Fund unless repurchases have been sspended by the Manager,
Units will be repurchased dally at the Met Asset Value per Linlt as at the relevant Repurchase Day {each Valuathon Day, or
fuch other diy o days as the Manager ey from tene to e determing in respect of the Senes Trustl, There will be no
repurchase charge on repurchages of Unitsheld owver five years,

Compalsory Rademption

I the event that the Trustes or the Manager shall determine that any Units of any Oess of & Series Trust are being held by
of for the benafit of & person who is not an Eligible nwestor for such Seres Trust or that suich holding would couse the
Trzst or the Series Trust tobe required toregister, be subject to ton or wiolate the laws of amy jurisdiction, or if the Trustee
o the Manager has readon to doubit the legitimacy of the sourcs of rdnies whed to fund the whscripion of purchase of
axh Units, or for whatever reason fwhich may not be disclosed by the Trustes or the Manager to Unitholders) that the
Trustes o the Manager considers appropriate at its absclute distration hiving regard to the interests of the Linithalders of
the ral svant Class or the Unitholders of the Series Trust s a whale, then the Manager, after consuitafion with the Trustes,
mnay ditect the holder thereo! 1o sl [subject to the provisions descrbed below in the saction headed “Transler of Linits")
axh Units within 19 days and provide to the Trustee and the Monager envidence of such sale, falling which the Manager
iy redesm much Lnits,

Terminotion of the fumd
Lipen tarrrination, the Mansgss will ¢ salize ol the assats of the Fund, and after paying cut of retaining adeguane prowsion
for all lisbilities propery payable and retaning provision for the costs of the termination, the Trustes shall distribute the
proceeds of that realization to the Lnitholders proportionately to their respective interests in the Fund as of the daes of
tarmination of the Fund.

Distribubions to Unithol ders

The Manager may, in it sole discetion, dectare disributions from Jure 2047, Chtributions will be declared on aach
Clstribartion Record Date and caloudated on sach Ex-Dissribution Dare, Distribution Period is n pericd commencing from the
cdendar day following the preceding Distibution Record Date and ending on ard induding the Digribution Record Date,
Tha disributions will ba padd en the relevant Distribution Payrment Date, provided that such armcunt (il syl declered with
respect th asch Jass of Uits shall only be paid cut of the Seried Trust®s net income, redlized and unrasipsd capital gains
i ey i stribastable funds of the Serfes Trust attributable o such Oass of Units as deverrrined by tha Manager,

Tha detlaration of dributions to Unithelders reduces the Oass Level et Asset Value per Unit witheut any comesponding
thange in the number of Oass Level Units per Unitholder, This resdts in a Unitholder’s overall investment in the Fund
baing reduced, 0 addition, any dsmibutions during 8 yesr which &na in exoess of tha Rund’s net increase in nal ssecs
resulting from apearations resd s in a portion of the dstribution being returmn of capital.

The amount of distributians, if amy, will be daterminad by the Mansger in its sole daretion, and no representation o
guarantes is rmads that a dstribution will be rads in respect of sach or any Distributen Perdod,

Capitalization

The Mat fxet Value per Uit (s calodated futeﬂ:h!}édirq Doy feach Vauation Day, or such other day or days as the
Nanager ray fram time to tims deterring in respact of e Saries Trust), by dividing the @iferencos in valuse batwesn the
Fund’ s assets and llabilites {including acorued fees and sxpanses of the Fund) by the nurmber of Units cwtstanding.

The Trust Dewd stipulates that the number of Units 1o be Bsued in the Fund shafl be unlimited s the Manager shall
detarnina and shal be without par value,

DERIWVATIVE FINANCLAL INSTRIUMENTS

Meoounting Stand ards Codffication BE5-10-50 raquires dischosures sbout derivative instruments and bedging acthvitias, it
reguires that the Fund dieclose: a] how ard why 80 entity wies devivative instremants, b) how decivative instruments and
related hadged iterns are accounted for and ¢] how dadvative insruments and related hadged itams affect an entity’s.
financisl positen, fnancial performanca and cash flows,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [continued)

The Fund orarsacts Tonward dedvative instruments primanily for hedging purposes with sach nstrument's peimany risk
expotir & beirg lorsign exthangs ridk The forward fareign aurrency sschange contracts hald by the Fund da not qualily as
hadges for accounting purp oses under the requirements of ASC 315 The falr value of these derfvative instruments is
inclded in the Statement of Amats and Lisbilices with changss in fair valus reflected as redized gaing/floses) or net
changa in unseall 2ad spprecistion fdeprecation] on derivatives within the Smatement of Operations (Mote 2).

The Fund may enter into B0 Intemational Swaps and Derdvative Asscaation, Inc, Master Agresment (“IS0A Misber
Agreement”) with [is counterparties In order o mitgats counterparty rise The 1504 Master Agresment Is typically
g ctianed by che Fund amd i1ts counterpar e, conmining the bi-lateral terms ard condidons for all subseguent derivative
rangac iong. The 504 Master Agraemnent allows fior the netting of all amounts owed to or due from counterparty Into a
single netpayrient il @ oredicevant or dafeadt should oedur,

The Fund has eleched to not offset fair value receivables and payables for derfivative contracts on the face of the Statement
of Assats and LisbiEes

At February 28, 3049 the Fund had entered into the following derivasive asse s by countaparty net of amounts avallable
fior offest undar & Master Natting Agreement {*M3A"]) and net of any collateral recaived by the Fund:

Dar b L pERfs Darkativas Mosrcash Cash Hat demourt of
Countarpasty Suibject T m MMA  Swnidmble for OMest Collstersl Resaived Collwtersl Rassived Aty
Chibarac NA L MNATIAD ] -Lsh R ] 2140
(e e Sl SLE 535 {SEB525) - - -
Sxate Soreet Bark And Trust Qo GrE = = - &8
Wirilaat Banking Conporation ill,668 {41,688 - > -
Total s 1 32T UED 213 UED =\sD = us0 27103

At February 28, 2019 the Fund had enterad Into the following deriative llabilides by counter par by net of aercunts svallabl e
fer effset under B MNA and ret ol sy collatersl pladged by the Fund:

Dwrbsative Duaativer Morrcash Cash Hat domourt of

Colata piety Lisklimias Bumilebla for OHzat Collutarnl Pladgad Collsbars! Pladged Dadautive

Suilact o MAA Lishilieias'
BrownBrothersHardman Bdo.  LED LESUISD =L -LED ] 155
‘Goldman Sachs 2,352,673 [BLE52%) - - LaM uE
W oyl Bai of Conads 4,573 - = = 4,573
Waesinse Banklng Corporgtian 120,805 [ LLEER) = ™ BT
Totsl USD  Za1B 10200 [1,030,213)USD —LED —USh 1 asvaas

! it aecent ecpail e gt wmound reconnibiepaysbin from e coonlirpesty in the sont of defsut

At February 28, 2019 the Fund had antered into the faltwing dervatives:

Aapet D heirtives mmm
Darivutiver Bk @k Saternant
Mot Accounted for as of Basetd Bhel ol Bsdars and
Hedgirg instrursants Linbdlithes Location Fair Vaksa Liabilithes Losation Fair Valus
Forward forsign curmency  Uneesllzed apprecistion Lirirgadized depredation
tachang e ConTracts on ferward foreign on forwand fomign
{Curreney Rik) crrir oy ok argn Lo LOSLAZY  surnincy txchargs 6 2,518,102
sonirach fontrad

The effect of derivative ingtrurnents on the Smterment of Operations for the year ended Febmuaey I8, 3015:

Changa in Ure salized
Loostion of Feslaed Appradstion o
Darvathvas Mot Accounted  Gain or [Loss) Galn or [Leze] [Dogeadation] on
i a1 Hedping Indtruments  on Dervsthees &n Dearhvatived Dardssiegd
et revad Tl oess oy Peewene d fDreign
Forwdnd l6raign Surmendy it dy Sahangi S50 REE
xchange condracts shange Iniunrgell jod appredation fdepredation)
A Currenoy i) o forwerd fordgn curmency excharge contracis  USD BO35.09F LD [ EEDEL L)
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2009

MIANAGERMENT FEES

The Managar is entithed i recaive out of the sisets of the Saries Trust a managemant fae of & totdl of OLESH per annum
{9,305 per anmum in regpaect of fee for the Manager and the Investment Manag e and 00355 per annom in respect of fee
for the Sub-investment Manager]) of the Net Asset Walue scorved on, and caloulsted a5 at, sach Yaluation Doy and payable
mionthiy in amears. In addition, the Manager is also entitled to be remburssd out of the assets of the Series Trust for amy
eupanges incurred by it in the proper performances of its powers and duties as parmitted under the Master Trust Deed.
During the year ended February 28, 3015, the Manager eamed fees of LISD BS3,798 of which USD 36,158 s st
outstanding as-of February IB, 2005,

The Manager will pay the fees of the Investment Maneger cut of its fees. The Investment Manager will pay a fee to the
Sulb-tnwestment Manager out of the fee received by the Impestment Manager.

CUSTODMAN AMD SUB-ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

Tha Fund has a custody and accounting agreerment with Brown Brothers Hamiman & Cou (the “Custodan® and “Sub-
Adrministrator”) for which the Custodian receives a fee millated and pald monthly based on total assets and transaction
vl

The Custodian and Sub-Admirdstrator is entided B0 receive out of the assets of the Sares Trust an adménistration fas
{induding transfer agent fes) caloulsted based on the MNet Asset Value o5 ot exch Vaduation Dey at the fallowing annual
rakes

- (08 up to [and induding ) USD 250 miltion;

= QU up to fand Tnduding ) LSE 800 mitilon;

- (06 over LISD 500 million.

Such administration fes [z payable monthly in arrears, and subject to the minfmum annual Fee of U0 30,000, in addition,
the Custodian and Sub-Administrator is also entitfed to recelve customary mfdoseping fees and transaction charges. All
out-of pocket expenses of the Qustodian and Sub-Administrator shall aso be bome by the Series Trust,

TRUSTEES FEES

The Trustes (s entided to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a combined fee at tve rate of 0,015% per annum of
the Mt Agset Vaue scoruesd on, and cafculated a3 at, each Valuation Day and payable semi-anneally in arreacs, subject toa
minimuem annyal fee of US0 15000 During the year ended February 28, 2019, the Trustee eamed fees of USD 145 103, of
which LGB0 14,595 is sl outstanding &€ of Februany 2B, 20190

AGENT COMPANYS FEES

The Agent Compary 4 entiled b redeive aut of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0058 par armum of the
et Amet Value accrued on, and calculated as at, each Valuaton Doy and payable quarterly In arrears. Ouring the year
ended Februsary 28, 2019, the fgent Company earned fees of USD 65,677, of which USD 4 104 [s 550 cutstanding a5 of
February 28, 1015,

CHSTRIBUTCR'S FEES

The Cistributer is entided to receive cut of the mssets of the Sedes Trust & fee ot the rate of 0.65% per annurn of the Met
Asset Value aconeed on, and cafoulated o5 af, exdth Vaduation Coy and poyable guarterly in arears. Ouring the year ended
February 28, 2019, the Distributdr esmed faes of LSD 853,757, of which USD 11E252 is stll outstending as of
February 28, 2019,

OTHER FEES AMND EXPENSES

The costs and expenses In connection with the establishment of the Serles Trust amd the offering of the Units, together
with the sstablishment of the Trug, including the costs and expendes of preparing and printing any prospectus: or
asplanatory brochures reguired, are estimated to smount o approdimately USD 180,000, Sudn costs and sspenses will be
amortized within the first five (5) finoncid years of the Series Trust unles the TruRtes deddes thak some other method
shall b appEed, The Adriristrator receives LISD 1 500 per annum for FATCA [ ORS compliance sengoes,
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2009

FIMANCIAL RISH MANAGEMENT

The Fund's activities sxpose it to 8 varlety of fnandal rigks: market sk finduding price risk, Enterest rate sk, and currendy
risk), cradit risk and Fquidiey risk.

el ookt ik
Al investmnsnis present a ek of loss of capital. The Irvestrent Manager moderates this risk through o care ful selecion of
sequrifes and other financial instruments,

The Fend's Irvestmasnt management process 15 describad In Mote 1. The primary deterrinant of the Fund's abllity o meez
is chjective of mid 1o long verrm capital appreciation while saming incoms is dependent of the performance of the
Ivestment In the Underiying Fund,

Tha Fund's investment management process fs described fn Nece 1, The Fund's overall markoet positions are monitored on
o daily bads by the Fund's Irvestment Manager.

The walue of the Fund’s impestments is affected by a number of factors, iInduding but not lmited o, changes in the wider
aeoncry, Tnandal snd asrrengy markets, foreign curmency gachangs rates, InTerest rate mowdman 5 and the cedit ratings
of debt issers,

The Fund may enter Into forward forsign curmency exchange contracts whith to varying degrees represent a marlost risk in
axoess of the smount reflactad on the Rind's Staternant of Aisets and Lisbilities The notional amaunt of the contract
represents the sxtent of the Fund's participaton In these Finandal instruments, Market fiscs associated with such conftracts
arise dus bo the posible movernents in foreign enchange rates undertying thess instruments

Oither market and credit risks indude the posbility that thers may be an liiquid markest for the contracts, that the change
in the value of the contract may not directly comelate with changes In the valus of the underlying curendies or that the
oounterparty to a forward contract defaults o its cbligation to perfomm under the terms of the contract. The Fund's
expeosur e boloss due to countepanty non-performance on open Forwards foreéign aurrency exchang e contracts is limibed to
the unrealized appreciation nherent in such finandal instruments which are reccgnized in the Statement of Assets and
Liatili s

Imterast Rote Risk

The Fund*s exposune (o changes in nberest rates refabes primarily to the Fund'sinvestiments in debt seorities contracts.
Irbarsse rate Muchistions miy el alfect the far walue and priding of derivative instruments purchased o sold shart by the
Fund. The imvestment Manager continuoudy monitors the Fund’s expomure to interest rate risk and the Fund's owerall
interast sensitivity on @ regular basis

Cradit Risk

Cradit risk represents the potential loss that the Fund would incur if the counterparties or issuers of debir securities laled
b parfone puriaant to the tamms of their cibligations 1o the Fund, For aschange-raded contmacts, the escharge acts as the
counterparty to edfic tansactons and, therefore, bears the rise of delivery to and from counterpariies of pecific
positions, The Fund's management dossnol consider that credinnisk related to open derivative contracts will hawe material
achverse effect on the fnandal condition of the Fund,

‘While both the LLS, Bankrup oy Code ard the Securities imvestor Protection Act of 1970 seek to protect ausiomen property
bn the evant of 8 slure, irsclvensy o liguidaton of an imsfiton, there is no certanty that, in the event of a failure of an
Ingituidon that has custody of Fund assets, the Fund would not Tnour losses due to (ts acsets being unavaltable for a pericd
ol dree, Wltmately bess than Gl recovery of its sssets, or both, Because all of tha Fund's cash is in oustody with a single
ngiudon, such losses could be significant and could materiatly Impalr the abdity of the Fund to achieve ltsimesimaent
clpretive, The Fund i subject to oredi risk to the sxtent that tes instiution may be unabls to il ies chligetions 1o repay
ArmCunt cwed,
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2009

FINANCIAL RISY MANAGEMENT |centinued)

Liguiiefity Risk
Irvestors should be aware: that the value of Units might fall aswell a5 rse. Investment in the Fund Inrachves a degree of risk;
thava can b no assurance hat the Fand's imnestrment objective will be achiesed,

The Furd if ssposad to dally repurchase of s Linits but management belioves that the Fund has sulficent rescurces 1o
meet the present and foresseable needs of s business cperations and, I necessary, the lquidity to fund repurcheses and
achisve B markst postion appropriately reflecting a smaller copitl base, This positon i monitored continually by
management o ensre that the Fund has the abllity to meat its cbligations.

At February 28, 2019, substantially a8 the Imvestrments of the Fund weere traded In the over-the counter marker.

Currency Risk

The Fund primadily holds imestments denominated in LIS0, which is the Fund's functiona and presentational currency.
Howarver, the Fund expects tohedge Japanese Yen, the value of the Fund’s net assors striburabie to JPY Qe As aresult,
the Fumd will incur gainsfosses on its forward forelgn aurrency exchange contracts which are uzed to hedge the 1Y Jass
nel assats b0 Japanaese Yen, and such gaingflcsses ane fully allccated to JPY Qass Al such hadging galnsfosses have been
reft ected in the total retumns aspresented in the Rnandal Highlights.

The Investment Manager monitors the Fund's cumency esposune on a dally bads
COMMITMENTS AND COMTINGENCIES

In the normal gourse of business, the Trustes on behalf of the Fund may enter inte contracts that contain a varfety of
representations and waranties and which provide general indemnifications. The ganeral indemmifications apply not only
bo the extent such representations and warranties are unirus but also may cower third parties such as the Fund’s
Administrator, Auditor or Investment Manager for daims related to the services performed for the Fund. The Trustes's
masmam exposire Lnder any Rah arargements 5 unknown, a5 epoure only arses 1o the extent future dalms that
hawe nok yet ocoumed are made against fve Trustes. Howsever, based on experience, the Trushes sxpecis the ride of loss to
b remoie.

SUBSECRIENT EVENTS

Managerment parformed & mb sequent events review up to June B, 2009, which is the date the finandal ststements were
mrailatie o be ipmwed.

Effective March 3, 2009 through Juns 28, 3018, there were subscriptions of USD 1,174,845 and there werg redempiions of
LSOy, 70, B06 in respect of Oaes IFY Uinits. There were distributions of USD 657 440 in respect of Cass IFY Units,.

Effective March 1, 20149 through June 26, 2019, there were subsoriptions of USD 286 825 and theve were redemptions of
LSD6,479,525 in respect of s USD Units Thare were distributions of LS0 522,569 in respect of Class LED Units

There are no other significant svants to report s they relate bo the Fund,
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2018 28
NB
2018 28
138,920,452 142,884,181 15,401,486
1,088,039 117,280
1,123,823 1,118,636 120,578
969,159 104,466
1,747,935 188,410
3,438,554 370,642
41,618 4,486
634 68
151,288,756 16,307,415
331,213 35,701
155,371 16,747
74,305 8,009
49,768 5,364
49,129 5,296
17,712 1,909
11,952 1,288
243,723 26,271
1,499 162
934,672 100,748
150,354,084 16,206,667
145,706,051 15,705,655
(607,380) (65.,469)
(1,917,843) (206,724)
7,173,256 773,205
150,354,084 16,206,667
9,393,871,563
910,907 10,313
62,318,176
5,969,414 10.44 1,125
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NB

2017 22 2018 28

3,700,848 398,914
3,700,848 398,914
607,575 65,491
607,575 65,491
205,093 22,107
49,129 5,296
46,737 5,038
17,712 1,909
11,807 1,273
3,841 414
58,665 6,324
1,608,134 173,341
2,092,714 225,574
3,860,324 416,104
(5,778,167) (622,829)
(1,917,843) (206,724)
3,963,729 427,250
3,209,527 345,955
7,173,256 773,205
5,255,413 566,481
7,348,127 792,055
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1,018,701
6,550,758

107,794
581,344
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2,092,714 225,574
(1,917,843) (206,724)
7,173,256 773,205
7,348,127 792,055
(1,411,827) (152,181)
(1,288,267) (138,862)
(2,700,094) (291,043)
93,987,292 10,130,890
67,978,316 7,327,383
(10,118,148) (1,090,635)
(6,141,409) (661,982)
145,706,051 15,705,655
150,354,084 16,206,667
150,354,084 16,206,667
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NB
2017 22 2018 28
NB
2016 12 16
2012 10 15
2009 a CIMA
2017 22
LLC
CIBC
UFJ PB
FASB ASC

946

GAAP
GAAP
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2018 28
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50

2018 28
142,884,181 142,884,181
3,438,554 3,438,554
146,322,735 146,322,735
2018 28
243,723 243,723
243,723 243,723
FASB ASC 740
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41 13,187,551 57 6,317,061
24
18,804,906 69 384,461

)
)
)
() ) )

93,987,292 67,978,316 161,965,608
(10,118,148)  (6,141,409) (16,259,557)
(1,411,827)  (1,288,267)  (2,700,094)

5,578,591 1,769,536 7,348,127
2018 28 88,035,908 62,318,176 150,354,084
1,018,701 6,550,758 7,569,459
(107,794) (581,344) (689,138)
2018 28 910,907 5,969,414 6,880,321
2018 28 96.65 10.44
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10.00
10,000
10

2018 28
2018 28 331,213

10

2017
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ASC  815-10-50

a b
c
ASC 815
ISDA 1SDA
1SDA
2018 28 MNA
MNA
(O]

Citibank NA 3,052,609 (18,008) 3,034,601
Goldman Sachs 286,474 (79,607) 206,867
Royal Bank of Canada 47 47
State Street Bank And Trust Co. 5,535 (603) 4,932

Westpac Banking Corporation 93,889 (93,889)
3,438,554 (192,107) 3,246,447

2018 28 MNA
MNA
(©)

Citibank NA 18,008 (18,008)

Goldman Sachs 79,607 (79,607)

State Street Bank And Trust Co. 603 (603)
Westpac Banking Corporation 145,505 (93,889) 51,615
243,723 (192,107) 51,615

@
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2018 28
3,438,554 243,723
2018 28
(5,932,600) 3,194,831
0.65
0.30 0.35
2018 28
607,575 2018 28 74,305
0.08 2.5
0.07 2.5
0.06
80,000
0.015
15,000 2018
28 17,712 2018 28 17,712
0.05
2018 28 46,737
2018 28 11,952
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607,575



2018 28
12
13
2018 20
2018 2018 18
10,122,828
2018 2018 18
5,097,538
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

February 28, 2018

{Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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Ajigin:

Irwestmees in eounties, a1 valee (cost of LSD 136,920,453}

Cash

Forelgn curnency, at valae joos; of USD 1,123, 833)

Pt el B T ol i

ImtnrRat tacktiabie

Weneallzed 2ppeeciation on Forwand foesign qurrency eechange coniracs
Prepaid assats

CEnar xssats

Tetal Bawts

Lialyiiies:

Payabhe fof unils iedepamad

Accrued dintribito's fees

Acongd management fees

Accrmaed custodian and adrministrator’s fees
Aronasd professionad fees

Acttrabd ruitees feee

Acreiare Bgend company’s Teds

\rmpgliced depeociation on fprward formgn cuTency pechange covtracts
Other | ahilit e

Tota! Falalvios

Mt Agsels AttrEbutabla to Unithalders

Anabpil of Net dsieti:

Faidin capital

Arcuirmigated distri botions v secets of ret investment noome

acoumisfated net reafized losses on investments and Toeeign currercy Sransactions and Borwaed
Faneign curresy exchange confracts

meel unrepined Sprecilion on investments. and faegn curendy Transacions and Epraded foreagn
CuneBncy BRCRANGE Eantracts

Nt Assets Attributable to Unitholdaers

Nt Asset Valoe per Una
[P Class 7 5,393 871563 - 510,907 Units outstanding)
(U0 Chasa USDO62 318,176 — £ 989,414 Units outstand ng}

usn 142,584,180
1,084,039

1,118,626

950,159

1,747,935

3,438,554

41,618

B4

151,284,756

331,233
155,372
4,505
49,768
45,129
LTI
11,852
243,713
1,459

a34,672
LS 150,354,084

EL] 145, 706,051
(8072800
{1,517, 843)

7,173,356
LD 150.458,084

i 10,313

The accomparying rotes are an integral part of these firanoal statements.
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For the period fram February 22, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) threugh February 28, 2018

[Expressed in United States Dallar)

Imwzsiemant | noomes:
Ingeresl
Total It Inceme

Evpenses:
Managerment fees
Ciisbribotcn’s T
Cratcedan aned adminisbrator's tees
Professional loas
Agerit company's lees
Trustees fees
Transfer aent fees
Registration fees
Other expendos

Tots| Expenies

Mt |rveairsenl Income

Realived and Unrealized Gabee [Locces):
Realized gains/{losses)
Investmends in securtus
Fanegn cunrenty trandsact ioas and fareard fangign oun ey eschingl ConLrats
Nt realimed [y
Chargs In weaealiznd appreciation/{depreciation]
ISt mends in secunties
Foreign curmency transactions and foraasd farelign cunrency endhinge conirscts
MNet chanps in parealized apprecation
Ml realined and anrealTed gairs

Mt increase by net #sets resulling from o pemtions

1860324
5,778,167}
1.917.843)

L.963.729

1200527
LITEISE

£ IEE 413

uso 7,188,127

The accompanying notes are sn nlegral part of these financial statements.
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For the period from February 22, 2017 (Commencement of Operatiens) through February 28, 2018

(Expressed in United States Dollar)

Imcreise [Decreasa] in Nat Avsats from:

Operatians:
Mt Tvettment income

Mt el oases

Pt changl in unvBallind 8 ppratation

Mt mErBNLE N Net AL FRALing Troem Operatices

Dishribationsg to Lisitholders:
2Py Class
Us0 Class

Total Chstrbutiong

Captal Transmctiond:

Uity s
SPY Class {1,018 751 Uinits)
USE Class |6 550, 728 Linies)

Unigs redeemed
2P Clase {107,704 Unrt)
USD Class 1581, 344 Ui}
Mt RErease W net JRETE resciting Tromm capital e i g

Total Indredsn in Net Asgits
Pt Ansets

Barginning cof pericd
End of period

ush 1091714
1.5 7.843)
T AT2256

7, EE 127

{1.431.827)
e {1ERIET)
{2, 700008}

93,967,292
T5TRILE

{10428.248]
6,141,805
i

s

150,354,084

The accompanying rotes are &n Imtegral part of these linancial statements,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period from February 22, 2017 (Commencement of Cperations) through February 28, 2018

ORGAMIZATION

MNEUS Corparate Hybrid Sscurities Fund (the “Furd®] is a series trust of the Nikko AM Offshore Funds, an open-ended unit
trust established by a supplemental trust deed dated December 16, 2016 jthe “Supplemental Trust Deed®], ender the laws
of the Cayman lslands, Mikko AM Mfshore Funds was established by a master truat deed dated October 15, 2012 (the
“Master Trust Deed”), under the laws of the Cayman Islands and ks licersed with the Cayman slands Monstary Autherity
pursuant to section 4(11{a} of the Mutual Funds Law (2005 Agvision). The Fund commenced apesations on Febouary 22,
2017,

The Fund's assets are managed on 8 day to day basis by Nikko AM Global Cayman Limaed [the “Manager”). Tne Marager
delegates imestrnent managernert dulies 1o Mikko Asset Management Co., L5d, (the “investment Manager™). The
kwestment Manager delegates imestment management duties o Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLE, (the “Sub-
Irwestment Manager™). The administrateon of the Fund is delegated to Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. [the “Custodian®
and "Sube-hdmanistrator”], a limited partnership organiced under the laws of the State of New York.

Thae irwestment objective of the Fund i 1o schieve a mid to long tesm total retumn throwugh incame and capital appreciation.
Thee Sevwes Truat shall mainly irvest in both irestment grade and ron-investment grade kyord securithes that are issued by
non-firarcial corporate issuers and hive been rated by either of Moody's, S&P or Fitch. The highest rating from all three of
these agencies shall be applied i each corporate hybrid security and the average rating of the portfelio shall be BEBB-/Raad
or abaene.

Corperate hybrd debt secunties are structuned instruments that combine both equity and fined Income charactesistics that
gerarally offer a means for issuers to barmow money from investors in return for interest payments. Such corporate iduers
mary umeiize hylrid debt for a vanety of measond, including bolstering their capital levels, lowering thelr weighted average
cost of capital. dhvers'fying thelr funding sources and managing credit ratings. Though terms and condilions hivne Becams
increasangly standandized, the specific characteristics of sach instrument {such as payment conditions, the ratio of debit and
equity-liks features, tine frames and applicalble rates] can vary,

The Series Trust may also wwest o foed and floating rate debt securities, including bonds, baued by governments and
goverrment relaled entities,

Derrvative Instruments wall be used for eificent portfalia rmanagement and/ar imvestment purposes only

The amuets of the Series Trust may be held in one or mone currencies, and the Serles Tnast will, in princigple, engage in
currincy hedging between the currency of denaminatisn of each Class (LS. Dollas for USD Class and Japanese Yen for JFY
Clags] and the curency of the investrnerts in the undedving portolio, prosdded, however, that such hedging for JFY Class
mary be performed thoough the ULS. Dollar.

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, OBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman]
Limited [the “Trustee” and the “Administratas”) is named & Trustee of the Fund.

The Marager appoirted Mitsubishi UF] Margan Stasley PB Securities Ca., Ltd to act as Agent Company (the “Agent
Compary™) and the Manager appointed Misubaibi UF! Mergan mnlu,- P8 Securities Co., Ltd 1o act as Distributor (the
“Distributor”) of Units in Japan or such ather person or institution as ray be appolnted 4 distributer of the Seres Trust by
the Manager from time 1o time.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Furd is an Irvestment Cormpany that follews the accounting and reporting guidance in FASE Accounting Standards
Codification 946,

Uize of Estimates

The accompanying financial stalements hive been prepaned in sccordance with accounting principhes generally sccepted in
the United States of America {"U.5. GAAP). The preparation of financial statements in Acoondance with LLS, GAAP requires
the Fund's management to make extimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilives at the date of the financlal statements and the repodted amounts of
revenyes and expenses during the reparting period. Actual results, indluding the ltimate amourt realized upan the sale of
fair valued Irvestments, could differ froen those estimates gnd such differences may be significant.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the period from February 22, 2017 {Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

Bosis of Accouniing

Security and confractual transactiont are recorded on & trade/contract-tate basis. Interesl inoome is recorded on an
effective yield basis, net of any applicable withholding tax. Imterest expenze and other expenses are réconded on an soorusl
basis, Realized gadns and Insses from security tranzactions are computed on the basis of the sverage cost of the securities
sold or covered, Changes in the valution of investments are recorded in the Statement of Operations as unrealized
Appreciateon of depreciation,

Velurtion of investments

Bonds and other debt securities, including restricted securities (ether than short-term ob®gadons but including listed
isswes} ane fair valued at their last sabe price in the pancipal market in which such securities are normally treded, on the
basis of valuations turnished by @ pricing senvoe, use of which has been approved by the investment Marager, or if no sale
has occurred, the bid price on the vahaatian date a8 pravided by brakers who are market makers in the securities. All debt
secuities wilh less than 12 months to maturity date, in principle <hall be fair valoed using an smortized cost effected oy an
eftective wieid accomylated/amortization methad to their maturity date with adjustment: bated on comparison with
muarket prioes as regulned .

In ascardante with the autharitative guidance on fair value measurements ard disclosures under U5 GAAP, the Fund
disciours the fair valse of i3 investments i a hisrarchy that priontizes the Inputs o valuation techriques used 1o meadure
tha fair walee. The hierarchy gaes the highest priosty to valuations based upon unadjusted quated prices in Sctive marsets
for identecal assets or babilities (level 1 measurement] and the lowest priority ta valuations based upon urchsendable
inputs that are dgnificant to the waluation [Leved 3 maserements), The guidance establishes thres levels of the fair value
hierarchy as folicws:

®  Leved 1 - lmputs that eeflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for idenzical investrments that the Fund
s thee abihiby 0 access af the medtorerment date;

®  Level 2 = inputs other than guoted prices that are sigrificant and observable for the asset or llabifity either
darecthy or indirectly. including Inputs In markets that are not considened to be active;

*  Level 3~ Inputs that are significant and unobsenvable.

Inguts are used in apphing the varous valuation technigues and broadly refer to the assumations that market participants
use to make valuation declsans, including assumptions about risk, Inputs may Indude price information, spedfic and broad
crealt data, Hguidity statisties, and cther factars, A financial instrument’s level within the falr value hierarchy b5 based upon
the bowest level of any Input that i significant to the fair value measurement. However, the determination of what
constitules “ahservable” requires significant judgment by the Ivvestrment Manager, The Imvestment Manager considers
abservabie data to be market data which is readily svallable, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not
oroprietary, and provided by independart sources that are actively invalved In the relevant market. The categorization of a
financial instrument within the hierarchy i based upen the pricing ransparency of the instrument and does not recessarily
correspard (o the Imvestment Manager's perteved itk of that indtruesent.

I st ents whose values are based on the quoted market prices in active markes, and therefore classified withan Leve! 1,
would inchyde adeeely traded equlties, certain U5, governsrent and sovereign aallpﬁm. and édrtain mMomney miadet
secwrities. The Investment Manager would not adjust the quated price for such instruments, even in situations where the
Fund held a Brge position and a sale covld reascnably impact the quoted price.

Investrents that trade in markets that are not considered to be actve, but are valued based on quoted market prices,
dealer guolations of alternative pricing sources supported by chsenvable inputs are dassified wathin Level 2, These nclude
Ivestmerit-grade debt securities, shart-tenr imaestraerts and forward forelgn currency exchange conmacts. As Level 2
investments include positions that are not traded in active markets ardfor are subject 1o ransfer restrictions, valuations
ray be sdjusted to refiect illiquidity andfor nen-transferability, which are generally based on available market mdormation.

iwestmaents classified withia Lewvel 3 hawe significant unobservable inputs, a2 they would trade irfrequently. Level 3
Instrumests would include asser-backed securities and collateralized morigage obligations, As ohsercable prices are not
availabla figr those securities, the Fund woald use valuation techniques to derive the fair value,

The inputs or methedology used for valung securities are nol necessarily an indecathon of the risk assocated with investing
In thoe seourities
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
Far the period from February 22, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

Valuation of Investments {continued)

The fpdlcwing table presents the financial instruments carried on the Statement of Azsets and Liabilities by caption and by
lewel within the valuation hierarchy as of February 28, 2008 Further dassrfications of the financial nstruments are
presented in the Portlolic of Investrments. There were no movements between levels during the poriad,

Aznsty ot Fabr Valum Fadr Walue oy
Lavel 1 Level 2 Lewied Febiruary I8, 2018
Faed income Secuntses 1] - YD 12 EES 16T wEb = VR 141584051
Fareard Fofeign Currency
Eﬁ"l%{ﬂﬂ@ﬂi — 3.13-‘&:55—' = 3,438 554
Tatal uso - USD 146,322,735 uso = USE 146,312,738
LimBitima &% Fadr Valoe Fair Value at
Lewal 1 Level I Lewel 3 Fabruary I8, i
Foreard Foreign Curnency
Exchange Conbracts WED = LED PRkl Wso = i 443,71k
Tatal Ui = Ws0 Ian i LS50 = s 243,713
Forgign Currency Transiation

Assets and Nabilizhes held in cwrrencies other than United States Qollar (*USD" or the “Functicna’ Currency”™} are translated
to the Fumctional Currency at the rate aof exchange prevailing at the financial statement date. incoma and expenses are
transdated ot the rate of eaxchange prevading ai the dale en which the income or exaense is ircurred. Realized and
unrealized gains and lossed ansing on foreign currency transactions are included In the Statement of Operations in the
peeriad in which thany oocur.

The Fund does not isofate that portian of the results of aperations resulting from changes in foreign excharge rates on
irvestments frarm the Auctuationg arsing from changes in marcket prices of securities held. Such Muctuations are included
with the net realized and vnrealized gain or loss frgem investments,

Income Taxes

Linder the current laws of the Cayman [slands, there are no incomes, withholding, caprtal gains or other taxes payable by
the Fund, In certain junsdictions other than the Cayman Islands, foreign taxes may be withheld at source on dividends and
irterast received by the Fund, Capital gains derived by the Fund In such jurisdictions genera’ly will be exgmpt from forgign
ircoeme or withholding faxes at sounce, Thee Furd intends to conduct its affalrs such that it wil net be subject to Income tax
im any Jurisdiction. As a result, no prosision for income taxes has been made In the financlal statements. Unitholders may
Lee tawed on their proportionate share of the Fund’s 1ax basis inceme based on their individual circumstanses.

Thie Fund fallaws the authoritative guidance on accounting for ond dischopure of uncertainy in tax positicns (Fnancial
Accounting Standirds Board ("FASE™) - Accourting Standards Codification 740}, which requires the Manager tc cetermine
whether a tax patition of the Fund is mare likely than not to be sustasned upan examination by the applicable tawng
authority, ncluding resolution of any related appeals or ldigation processes. based on the technical rerits of the pasition.
For tax poditions meeting the mane kkely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognized in the financial statements i
reduced by the brgest benelit that has a greater than fifty percent ikelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement
with the relgvant taxing authority, The Manager has determined that there is minmal or no effect on the financial
siaterments Deing wnder this authoritatree guidance.

Forward Fareign Currency Exchange Coatracts

The Fund rmay enter inte forward foren currency exchange contracts to hedge againgt foreign curmency eachange rate
fidkd o0 all ar 3 portion of per-USD denaminated investments o for efficient pomfolio management purposes. When
entering nta & forsward foreign currenty exthange contract, the Fund agrees o receive or deliver 3 ficed quantity of
foreign currency for an agreed-apon price on an agreed future date. Thess eortracts are valued daily, and the Fund's net
equity thersin, representing unrealized appreciationf{depreciatien] on the contracts as measured by the difference
betwern the forward foceign currency exchange rates at the dates of entry into the contracss and the forward races st the
reporting date, is included in the Statement of Adiets and Liabilities. Realized ard unrealized gains and lasses are included
i the Ssatement of Operations.

These instrements invabee market sk, credit rsk, of both inds of rsks, in excess of the amount recognized n the
Staterment of Assels and Liabibtes. Risks arise from the possible inabidity of counterparties to meet the terms of their
contracts and from mavement in currency and securities values and interest rates. In addtion to the class level hedging.
the Fund had realized lasses of USD 6,317,061 on 41 forward foreign currenty exchange contracts duning the period with
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
Far the period fram February 22, 2017 [Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

SUMBMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

Farword Foreign Currency Exchange Controcts (continued)

an averagn notional of USD 13,187,551 and an average term to maturity of 57 days. The Fund also had realived gaing of
USD 384,461 on 24 forward foreign currency exchange contracts heid at the Class MM Hedged level during the period with
an average noticnal of USD 18,804,906 and an average term to maturity of 59 days.

Cath and Faveign Curréncy
Caxh and foreign currency comprises all currency held with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co,, and overneghit and ather short
term placements with other firancial institutions.

UNITS

The net assets of the Fund are divided info JPY Class Units and LS00 Cass Units. The Units are denominaled u fapanese Yen
and Linited States Dosftar, [P¥ Class Units and USD Class Units are available to an eligible investor who b any perion,
corporation of entity which is not (1 a citreen or resident of the U5, 3 partnership organized or existing in the U5, or any
corparation, trust o other entity coganized undar the laws of or exdsting In the US; (i} resident or domiciled in the Cayman
Islands {exchuding amy object of a charitable trust or power or an cxempted er nercresident Cayman bslands company]; (1]
unable o subseribe for or hold Units without volating applicable laws, or {w] a custodian, nomiree, or trustes for any
BRSO, COTPOration or entily descnbed in i) 1o (1) above.

The Manager may determine Lo iviue one of more classes of Units of the Fund without pricr notice to or weitten consent of
the Unitholders.

Al of the AT assets altribatable to JPY Clads Units and USD Class Units are held by one Unithalder,

P Class UISE Class Tatal Fund
Balance at baganning of periad usp - ush - D -
Subacrignicns during the period 93,907,792 E7,978,316 151,965, 608
Regiprristions. dharing the poenad (10,118, 148) 16,141,405 (15,256,587
Cstributicons 1L411.827) {18826 12,700,004}
Nel ncrease nnet 359ets resulting from operations 5,5_{3_591 1,765 536 .....__FIT..‘EEE."‘_.
Met Acers at Febnary 26, 2018 USD  BHO35508 USD 562 3LEANG  USD 150354084
Nurnber of Undts in isiue ot begienng of perod - - -
Linitgs. issuad dhating the paripd 1018, 002 5,550, 758 7563 455
Uit redes med durisg the penind (167, 754) {581, 344) [680,138)
Mumber of Unis in issue ot Febreary I8, 1018 910,507 5,565,414 £ RRDE21
Mol st Valor per Usit at February I8, 1018 Liso BEAES  USD 1,44
Subscriptions for Units

W50 Class Units were first issued at an initial ssue price of USD 10,00 per inét. JFY Class Units were first iszsued at an initial
lssue price of JFY 10,000 per Uait. On and after indial closing day, the minsmum initlal subscripthon for USD Class Units per
subseriber s 10 Units or moere, 2nd in multiples of 1 Unit thereafber, The minkmwm initial subscription for 3P Class Undts
per sibecriber (s 1 Unit ar more, ard in multiples of 1 Units therealter,

The Manager may watve or change the minimem initiel and sddittonal subscraption amaunts sel forth alkove in i sole
discretion fram leme 1o tirme.

Sales Charge
In addétion to the subscription pnce, the applicant shall pay a sales charge caloulated a1 wp 10 3% (excuding any tax
applicable] of the purchase peice, 1o the Distributor,

Unit Redemptions

The Fund recagnizes redemptions in atcordance with the authoritative guidance on distenguishing liabilitees from equily,
Redemptions, whether expressed as United States Dollar, Japainese Yen or Unds, are recognized as habilities when each of
the Urited States Dollar, Japanese Yen and Unit amounts reg d in the redemplion notice becomes Taed, which
penerally may ooour either at the time of the receipt of the notice, or on the last day of & frucal year, depending om the
nature of the request. As a result, redemptions paid after the end of the period, bul based upon year end net assets are
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NEUEB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the period from February 22, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

UNITS {continued)

Unit Redemptions [continwed)
reflected as redemptions payable at February 28, 2008, There were S0 331,213 of redemptions payable as at
Febrary 28, 10148, included a5 Payable for Units redeerned in the Statement of Assets and Liabelities,

Repurchase of Uity

Each Linithalder may reguest b repurchase of Units by the Fund uress repurchases have been suspended by the Manager.
Units will be repurchased day at the Net Asset Value per Unit a3 at the relevant Repurchase Day [mach Valuation Day, or
such gther day or days a4 the Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Seres Trust), There will be no
repurchase change on repurchases of Units beld oves face years,

Compilsory Redemption

in the event that the Trustee or the Manager shall determine that any Units of ary Class of & Sedies Trust are being held by
or for the berefit of 2 person whe is net @n Eligible Investor for such Series Trust or that such halding would cause the
Trust or the Series Trust 2o be required to register, be subject o tax or viclate the laws of amy jurisdiction, or 1T the Trustes
ar the Manager has reason 1o ooubt the legitmacy of the source of monles used to fund the subseription or purchase of
such Units, or for whatever reason (which may not be dedosed by the Trustes or the Manager 1o Unitholders) that the
Trustee or the Mangager considers appropeiate at its absolute discretion baving regard te the Interests of the Unitholders of
the relevant Class or the Unitholders af the Series Trust as a whaole, then the Manager. afier consyitation with the Trustes,
may direct the bolder thereof to sell {subpect o the providions desenbed below in the sectipn headed “Transter of Units”]
such Urits within 10 days and provide to the Trustee and the Manager eviderce of such sale, faifing which the Manager
may redeem such Units,

Termination af the Fund
Upon termanation, the Manager will reallze all the assets of the Fund, and after paying sub or retalning sdequate provisian
Tor all llakilities properly payable and retaining provision foe the codts of the termination, the Trustee shall distribute the
procewds of thal realization te the Unitholders proportonately to thelr respective inerests in the Fund as of the date of
terménation of the Fund.

Drstribations fo Uaithaiders

The Manager may, In its sele discretion, declare distibutions from June 2017, Distributions will be declared on each
Distributian Recard Date and calculated on each Ex-Gistrabution Date. Distribution Period §s a period commending from the
calondar day fallowing the preceding Distribulion Record Oate and ending an and Including the Distribution Record Date.
The distributions will be paid on the relevant Distribution Payment Date, proviced that such amount {if any] dedared with
respect ta each Class of Units shall anly be paid own of the Series Trust's net income, rediced and unrealized capital gains
and any distributable funds of the Series Trust anributable to such Ciass of Units as detesmined by the Manager.

The declaratian of distributions to Unitholders reduces the Class Level Net Asset Value per Unit without any corresponding
change in the number of Class Level Units per Unitholder. This resulls it & Unitholder's overall investment in the Fund
being reduced. In addition, any distributions during a year which are in extest af the Fund's net increase n net assets
resulting from operations results in a portion of the distribution beirg return of capital.

The amownt of dstabutions, i any, will be determined by the Marsger in its 2ole diseretion, and no representadon ar
puarantes is made that a distribution will be made in respect of mach or ary Ratribution Perlad.

Copitaiirotian

The Met Asset Value per Unit is caleulated for each Dealng Day (each Valuaticn Day, or such other day or days as the
Manager may from Uime 1o time determane in respect of the Series Trust), by dividng the difference in value between the
Fund's assets and liabdlities [ncluding accrued feps and expenses of the Fund) by the number of Units outstanding

The Trust Ceed stipulates that the number of Units 10 be Siued in the Fund shall be urtmited as the Marager shall
detenmine and shall be without par value.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Acoountirg Standards Codification B15-10-50 requires disc'asures about derivative instruments and hedging activities it
requires that the Fund disclose: a) how and wity an entity uses derivative instrumends, b) how denvative instruments and
relzted hedged items are accounted for and ) bow derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity™s
financlal pasition, financial performance and cesh flows,
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NEUEB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the period from February 22, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

DERIVATIVE AINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Fund tramsacts forward derbative instruments orimarity for hedging purpates with sach instrurmnent's primary risk
capaiure being forelgn exchange risk, The forward fareign currency exchange contracts held by the Fund de net quality as
hedges for accounting purpases under the requirements of ASC 815, The fair value of these dervatie instraments is
Incheded in the Statement of Assets and Linbalities with charges in foir vabue reflected as realived gains/ilosses) or net
charge in unreatized appreciation/[depreciation) on derivatves within the Staterment of Operations (Note 23,

The Furd may gnter imte an International Swaps and Dedvative Association, Inc Master Agresment {1504 Master
Agremment™) with it5 counterparties In order to mitigate counterpary risk. The 1SDA Master Agreament i bypically
reegotlated by the Fand and its courterparties, containing the bilateral terms and conditions for all subsegueent dervative
transactions. The (504 Master Agreement allows for the nesing of all amounts cwed to or due from counterparty into a
single net payment ifa cred't event or defaul; should cocur.

Thee Fund has elacted to not affset fair valee recelvables and payables for derbvathve contracts on the face of the Statement
of Assots and Liabihties,

At Feloruary 28, 2018 the Fumd had entered into the fallowing derivative assets by counterparty rat of amaunts available
for offuet under 8 Master Netting Agreement {“MMNA") and net of sny collateral received by the Fund:

Derivative Arset Derivatives Mon-cash Cash Mt Arvownt of
Counterparty Subject 8y & MNA _Avsilable for Offtsat € Raceived Coblitaral Received mmmg‘_
Citibank MA uED 1052605080 118, D] uSo =ush =Lish 1,004 801
Goldmah Sachs 86 AT {79,607 - - I0ERAT
Reval Bank ot Canada ar - - = &T
State Street Rank And Trust Co 5,535 {e03) - - 4,937
Westpar Banking Covporation 43,849 o B8] - - -
Tatal usn 3438554080 {192,107 USD - s - LISD 3,245,447

At Febouary 18, 2018 the Fund hac entered into the fellowing deswvative liabilities by counterparty net of amounts available
Tor offset under @ MNA and ret of any collateral pledged by the Fund:

Deediwati 1D N h Cash Mt Amasunt of

Cownterparty Liabiftios Avaiable for Odfeet Collpteral Pledped  Collapersl Pledged Derlvative

Subject o 2 MNA Liabiltes*
Citiban KA [T 18, 602050 118,008] USD ) =L -
Goldren Sachs TEEDT 15T - = =
Srate htreet Bani and Trust Co. 603 ) e - =
Wikt pal Basking Codparation 145,505 193.553] - - 31,645
Total Usb aa37330s0_ [1s2107 030 —wp wo 51
1 Wt amoent equals 150 nes smount 2/ parpaaie drom the bty i ERe pvend of dpfait

At February 28, 2048 the Furd had entered into the foliowing derivatives:

Angal Darivitian Lishility Dedivatives
Cuariwatives. Staternemt fRatemant
Mot Accourted for as of Assety and af Asaett and
Hedging Instruments  Liabifities Location Fair Valwe Liabilithes Levation Fair Value
Foeward Toreign currancy  Urrealiced appiacaton Linreéal rad diprecistion
eackarge contrscs on farward foreign an ferward foreign
{Carrency Ry oarrency exbange s JAIETH curnindy excthange (1] 243,723
oY Ll v

The eftect of derbvative instruments on the Statement of Dperaticns for the period ended February 28, 2018

Changs in Uniealized
Loeation of Riealined Apgeecistion oF
Daebvathves Not Accourted  Garinoor [Loss} Gain or {Loas) |Degprecation] an
ior as Hedging Imtraments  on Derbvatives on Devivatives Derivatives
et tealiced lods o orwaid foreigh
Forwarns Soneign currency cuerency suchange centracty,
eArharge contbiacts changs in undealized sppreciation [depregiation)
{Currency Risk] on forward foreign cumendy exchange contracts  Lsm (5.932,6000  UsD 3,154,531
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MEUB CORPDRATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the period from February 22, 2017 [Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

MANAGEMENT FEES

Thie Manages i entithed to receive out of the assets of the Serles Trust & management fee of a total of 0UBS% per annum
10.30F% per annuem in respect of fee for the Manager and the frvestroent Manager and 0.35% per annum in respect of fee
for the Sub-bnvestmant Managnr) of the Met Asset Value accrued on, and calculated as at, sach Valuation Day and payable
monthby in arreacs, In addition, the Manager Is also entitled to be reimbursed out of the suets of the Series Trust for any
expensos mcwrred oy it in the proper performance of its powers and dutles & permitbed under the Master Trust Deed.
ring the perod ended February 28, 201, the Manager carmed fews of USD 807575 of which LSD 74,305 is still
outstandeng a5 of February 28, 2018,

The Marager will pay the fees of the investment Manager cut of Hs Tees. The Investment Manager wall pay a fee to the
Sulr-lrvestment Manager cut of the fee received by the Investment Manager.

CUSTODIAN AND SUB-ADMIMNETRATOR'S FEES

The Fund has 8 custody and accounting sgreement with Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co. (the “Cuvtodian™ and “5ub-
Administratar”) for which the Quitodian receives & e caloulated and paid monthly besed on total assets and transaction
wolume.

The Custodian and Sub-Adminisratpr is entithed to receive out af the atssts of the Seres Trust an administration fee
{including transfer agent fee) calculated based an the Net Asset Value s a1t each Valuation Day st the fclowing annual
rates

= 0,08% wp ta fand including) LISD 250 millien;

- 0,07% up te fand inchuding) LSO 500 milliong

- 0.06% ever LS 500 million,

Such sdministraticn fee is peyable monthly in amears, and subject to the minkmem annual fee of USE 80,000, In addition,
the Custedian and Sub-Adminstrator s also entitled to receive custemanry sefekenping fees and transaction charges. All
oul-of-pocket copenses of the Costadian and Sub-Admanistrator shall also be borme by the Serles Trust.

TRUSTEES FEES

The Trustee is entitied ta receive out of the assets of the Seres Trust 8 combined fee at the rate of S.015% per anaum of
thie Met Aseet Value acerued on, and caloulated as at each Valuation Day and peyable quarterly in arrears, subject to 2
minimum annual fee of USD 15,000, During the period ended February 18, 2018, the Trustes sarned fees of US0 17,712, of
which LIS 17,712 is still outstanding ad of February 28, 2018.

AGENT COMPANYS FEES

The Agent Company is entizled 1o recodas out of the asgets of the Serss Trust a fee at the rate aof 0.05% per anmwm of the
Het Asset Value accrued on, and caloalated a5 at, each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. During the pesiod
erded February 18, 2018, the Agent Company carmed foes of USD 45737, of which USD 11,952 15 &ill swstanding as of
Febriary 28, 2018,

DISTRIBUTOR"S FEES

The Diswibutor is entitied 1o receive out of the assets of the Sedes Trust a fee at the rate of 0.65% per annum of the Net
Asset Valoe accrued an, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day and payable guarterdy in arcears. During the period ended
February 28, 2018, the Distribulor earned fees of USD 607575, of which USD 155,371 &5 sl cutstanding as of
February 28, 2018,

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

The costs and expenses in connection with the establishment of the Series Trust and the offering of the Units, together
with the estatlshment of the Trast, inchuding the costs and expenses of preparing and printing any prospecius ar
explaratony brochures requined, are estimated to amount to approsdmately USD 180,000, Such costs and sxpenses will be
amortived within the first five (5] financeal years af the Series Trust unbess the Trustes decides that some other method
shall be applied. The Administrator receives L5D 1,500 per annurm fer FATCA f CRS compliance services.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from February 22, 2017 (Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

FINANCIAL RISX MANAGEMENT

The Fund®s activities expose i to a variety of financial risks: market risk {including price risk, interest rate risk, and currency
risk], credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market Risk
All irdestments present a risk of lods of eapital. The Investrment Mansger moderates this rise through a casefil selection of
securities and ather financial instruments,

Thes Furd"s ivastment managemeant procass is deseribed in Note 1. The primary detereinant of the Fund's sbiliey ta meat
Its objective of mid 1o long term capital agpreciation white carring income is dependent of the performance of the
imvestment in the Underdying Fund.,

The Furalls imeestment management prooess s desoribed in Noge 1. The Fund's ovarall market pasitiors are moritoned on
a daily bas!s by the Fund's Investrent Manages,

The value of the Furdd's investrments is aflected by a number of factors, mcleding but not lmited to, changes in the wider
ecanomy, fmancial and cusrency markets, foreign cufrency exchange rates, intedest mle movements and the credit ratings
of debt Bawers,

The Fund may enter Into forward foreign currency exchange cortracts which 1o varying degrees represent & market risk in
eacess of the amount reflected on the Fund's Statement of Assets and Labilities. The notional amount of the conlract
represents the extent of the Fund's participation in these financial instruments. Market risks associated with such contracts
arise due to the possible movements in foreign exchange rates underbying these instrurments.

Other market and credt risks include the possibiiity that there may be an illiguid market for the contracts, that the change
In the value of the contracs may nat directly correlate with changes in the valee of the underbying currencies or that the
counterparty to a forward contract defaults on its obligetion 1o perform under the terms of the contract. The Fund's
exposure to loss due to counterparty ron-performance on gpen foraards foneign cumency excharge contracts is limited to
the urrealied appreciation inherent in such financial instruments which are secogrized in the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities,

Interest Rote Risk

The Fund's exposune 1o changes in interest rates relates primasily to the Fund’s ivestments in debt securitlies contracts.,
Iriterest rate fluctuations may also sHect the fair value and pricing of derivative instrements purchased or sokd short by the
Fumd. The Irvestment Manager continsousdy monitors the Fund's exposuse Lo inlerest rate risk and the Fund’s overall
interest sEasitivity on a regular basis,

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the petential loss that the Fund would incur (F the counterparties or Issuers of debt securities falled
ta perform pursuant o the terms of their sbligations ta the Fund. For excharge-traded conacts, the exchangs acts as the
sounterparty to specific tramsactions ard, therefore, bears the risk of delivery to and from counterparties of specific
positiond. The Fund®s ranagemant daes not consider that credit risk related to open derivative contracts will have mazerial
adverse effect an the finsncal conditian of the Fund

While bath the LS, Bankeuptey Codie ard the Securities Investor Pratection et of 1970 teek to protect cuitamer property
in the event of a fallure, inzolency or liquidation of an institution, there is no certainty that, In the event of a fallure of an
iatibution that has custody of Fund assets, the Furd would not incur ioases due o its assets being unavailable Tor a penod
of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assels, or both. Becawse all of the Fund's cash is in custody with & single
institwtion, such losses could be significant and could matera’ly impair the ability of the Furd to achiewr it irvestment
obpectve. The Fund is subject to credit risk 1o the extent that this institutesn may be unable to fulfill s obgations to repay
armounts cwed.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from February 22, 2017 {[Commencement of Operations) through February 28, 2018

FIMANCLAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continued)

Liquidity Risk
Imvestors should be aware that the value of Unfts might fall as well as rise. investment In the Fund invobves a degree of risk;
thaitrie 204 B Ay Bekdaitaroe that the Fund's inve strment abjective will be sehiasd.

Thie Fund ks cxpased to daily repurchase of s Unis but management belleves that the Fund has sufficient rescurces to maet
the present and foreseeable needs of ts business operations and, il necessary, the liquidity to fund repuschases and achieve &
market pasitian appropristety reflecting a smaller capitad base. This position is monitered continuslly by management to ensure
that the Furd has the ability 1o mest it oblgations.

At February 28, 2018, substantially all the nvestments of the Fund were traded in the over-the-counter market

Currency Ritk

Thi Fund primarily holds imvestments derominated in LSO, which is the Fund's functiona’ and presentational curnency.
Howewar, the Fund sxpects to hedge Japanese Yen, the value of the Fund’s net assets attributable to JFY Class. As a result, the
Fumnd will intur gainglostes an its forward foreign currency exchange contracts which ane used to hedge the 1PY Chass net assets
to lapanese Yen, and such gaing/lasses are fully allacated to IPY Class. All such hedging grins/flosses have been reflected in the
Evtald refuims as presented in the Financial Highlignts.

The Imvestment Manager menitors the Fund's currency exposure on a daily basis,

COMMITMENTS AND COMTINGENCIES

In thy normal cpurse of busingss, the Truster on bethal! of the Fund may enter into contracts that contain & wariety of
representations and warranties dnd which provide peneral indemnifications, The general indemnifications apply not only 1o the
extant such reprosentations and warrantes are untrue bt also may cover thind parties such as the Fund's Admindstrator,
Auditor g krvestment Manager for claims related to the services performed for the Fund. The Trustee's masdmum exposure
under any fuch arangements is unknown, as exposure only arises to the extent hiure daimi that have not yet occurred are
madi agabnst the Trustes. However, based on eapéricnce, the Trustee expedts the risk of ks to b remobe.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management performed a subsequent events revlew up to July 20, 318, which 15 the date the financial satenents were
avalable 1o be jidukd.

Effective March 1, 2018 through July 18, 2018, there ware subscriptions of USD 8,543,484 and there were redemplbgns of
USD 10,122 828 in réspect of Class IPY Units. There were distributions of 1,030,083 in respect of Jass JPY Units.

EMective March 1, 2018 threugh July 18, 2018, there were subscriptions of USD 4,003,100 and there were redemptions of
USD 5,097,538 i respect of Class USD Unlts. There ware distributions of 905,960 in respect of Class USD Units.

Thegre are ndg other Significant evants B0 féport s thisy refate o the Fund.
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2019
208,586,879.68 22,483,579,761
101,157,734.69 10,903,792,222
107,429,144.99 11,579,787,538

4,074,991

701,697

10.41 1,122
9,981

114/179



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
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40 Water Street Boston, MA02109-3661 U.S.A
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5,332

2019

11

14

268,270,936,327
988,350
2,841,482,611

90
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2019 31
2019 2018
3,938,928 424,577 2,282,080 245,985
3,190,108 343,862 4,264,282 459,647
71,250 7,680 71,250 7,680
7,200,286 776,119 6,617,612 713,312
7,200,286 776,119 6,617,612 713,312
146,480 15,789 185,000 19,941
124,271 13,395 107,593 11,597
2,462,391 265,421 3,623,292 390,555
2,733,142 294,605 3,915,885 422,093
480,000 2019 31
2018 31
480,000 480,000 51,739 480,000 51,739
3,987,144 429,774 2,221,727 239,480
4,467,144 481,513 2,701,727 291,219
7,200,286 776,119 6,617,612 713,312
17 2019
129332
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2019 31
2019 2018
3,938,928 424,577 2,282,080 245,985
3,190,108 343,862 4,264,282 459,647
71,250 7,680 71,250 7,680
7,200,286 776,119 6,617,612 713,312
1 0.108 1 0.108
1 0.108 1 0.108
7,200,287 776,119 6,617,613 713,313
146,480 15,789 185,000 19,941
124,271 13,395 107,593 11,597
2,462,391 265,421 3,623,292 390,555
2,733,142 294,605 3,915,885 422,093
480,000 2019 31
2018 31
480,000 480,000 51,739 480,000 51,739
3,987,145 429,774 2,221,728 239,480
4,467,145 481,514 2,701,728 291,219
7,200,287 776,119 6,617,613 713,313
17 2019
129332
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2019 31
2019 2018
22,335,065 2,407,497 28,757,335 3,099,753
22,335,065 2,407,497 28,757,335 3,099,753
(1,276,979) (137,646) (1,383,168) (149,092)

(19,056,557)  (2,054,106) (25,366,385)  (2,734,243)
(20,971) (2,260) (18,121) (1,953)
(161,343) (17,391) (247,668) (26,696)
(20,515,850)  (2,211,403) (27,015,342)  (2,911,984)

1,819,215 196,093 1,741,993 187,769
(53,798) (5,799) 63,803 6,877
(53,798) (5,799) 63,803 6,877

1,765,417 190,294 1,805,796 194,647

1,765,417 190,294 1,805,796 194,647

1,765,417 190,294 1,805,796 194,647
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2019 31
> )Y )« ¢ > C )
480,000 51,739 1,415,931 152,623 1,895,931 204,362
1,805,796 194,647 1,805,796 194,647
(1,000,000)  (107,790)  (1,000,000) (107,790)
480,000 51,739 2,221,727 239,480 2,701,727 291,219
1,765,417 190,294 1,765,417 190,294
480,000 51,739 3,987,144 429,774 4,467,144 481,513
2019 31
2019 2018
1,819,215 196,003 1,741,993 187,769
(53,798) (5,799) 63,803 6,877
1,765,417 190,294 1,805,796 194,647
1,074,174 115,785 (2,374,066) (255,901)
(1,182,743) (127,488) 2,208,357 238,039
1,656,848 178,592 1,640,087 176,785
(1,000, 000) (107,790)
(1,000,000) (107,790)
1,656,848 178,592 640,087 68,995
2,282,080 245,985 1,641,993 176,990
3,938,928 424,577 2,282,080 245,985
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2019 31
309GT
EU
IFRS IFRS IFRIC
2019 31 IFRS
1ASB IFRIC EU
IFRS 1ASB
IFRIC
IFRS 16 2019
1ASB IFRS
2019 31 2018 31
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JPY GBP SGD
2019 31
2018 31 10
2019 2018
JPY 54,000 227,000
GBP 95,000 46,000
SGD 56,000 149,000
2019 31 2019
3,938,928 3,938,928
3,190,108 3,190,108
71,250 71,250
146,480 146,480
124,271 124,271
2,462,391 2,462,391
2018 31 2018
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2,282,080 2,282,080

4,264,282 4,264,282

71,250 71,250

185,000 185,000

107,593 107,593

3,623,292 3,623,292

2019 31 2019 31
2019 31 a
@ ®) ®)

) C C C
4,735,296 339,775
9,478,941 1,253,147
2,634,320 307,671
2,071,148 549,065
136,852 12,733
19,056,557 2,462,391

2018 31 2018 31
2018 31 a
@ ®) ®)

) C C C
8,480,224 2,231,327
10,465,491 792,235
3,643,329 223,129
2,605,050 204,310
172,291 172,291
25,366,385 3,623,292

(a
(b
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MIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCLAL POSITION
ASAT 31 MARCH 20019
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2232060
4254252
T1,250

6517612

LT Rt e

185,000
109593
EE-E e

LB

Nitee 2
Adsens
Currend Assets
Cash and cath equivalents 4 3958508
Avcounts pecur alibe 3,190,108
Avccried s shd prepald eeperee 71,250
Total Current Assers 7,200, 286
Total Non- Current Assets
Total Assels 3 7,200, 28
Liabilities and Equity
Curna Lishilikies
Aciued expenses and deferred income ] 146450
Acoounts payabls 124101
Ammoants payable bo group wederbalongs L3 246239
Total Current Liabilities Fara il v
Erquity
Capital and Beserves Attributable i Equity
Hodders of the Company

Share capital (51 por wadue, 480,000 dares
wuthorized, $80,000 shares izued snd 450,000
dutstand g at 31 March 2009 and 2018

450,000

2IZV 2T

201,727

Folaired sarmungs 3,967, W4
Total Equity o, 45T e
Total Labilites and Equity 5 T, 200, 256

GELTAL2

The arriecad nobes from 1 bo 8 form an mdegral part of thess franaal staterments

The firancal sabements onpages 2 b 1T were approved by sritten resolidion of the Board of Tirectars on 2 August 2019 and

athonsed for 1z and signed on itz behalf by

Compary regrtaned oombaor. 125332
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MIKEQ AM CGLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
COMPARY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ASAT 21 MARCH 200%

Nale 2009 2018
Ass
Curremt Assets
Cuzh and cash epuvalets i aee o 2,262 (a0
AT racsTabe 3190108 4,104 2852
Acaued inoome and prepond epenos 71,250 TE 25
Total Current Assets 7,200,286 £617,512
Mim- Cuarrent Assets
e estrneend. 1 Subswdary ] 1 1
Total Non-Current Assels ] 1
Toral Assets 3 TMZET F 6617613
Liabilities and Equity
Current Lisbilties
Acorund expanses and deferred sncome £ a4sd  § 1E5, 000
Accmicks payrable 12227 107 593
Arnoures payrsble to grosp mdertakings & 2443 351 3,603 240
Total Current Lisb e 2,733,142 L LS
Fquiny
Capital and Feserves Attributable to Equity
Hudders af the Comnpary
Share capdal (31 par value, 450 000 shares suthonzed,
480, 000 shares 15aped and outstanding o 31 Manch A50,000 A0 000
2018 and 2018)
Retame] esrmungs 3,587,145 2a1.ns
Total Equity AT 148 2,700,728
Total Liabilities and Equity 3 TA0ZET F G617 S1E

The seroened fioles from 1 be & form an anbegral part of thess firancal satements

The firarcial statermenks on pages 8 to 17 ware spproved by written resclition of the Bosrd of Directors on T August 2019 and
mthonsed for 1zane and ngred on its behalf by

Company apserad srember 120332
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NIKEQ AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARE ENDED 31 MARCH 019

Note 2019 2008
Op erating Revenues
Invedment managemant and wdvisory fees from theed parties 5 pedea e . 28,757,535
Total cperating reversses 2335085 23,757,335
Operating Expenies
Sub-advizory fees with thaed parties (1T (1,383, 168)
Bub.advisory fees with group undertalong & {2058 35T (25,308, 3855
A fees 20571 [AEAFIM
Other cperating and adminifirsisre expenses {161,343) (4T, 6550
Tetal operating axpenses (20,515,5500 (27.015.3425
Operating Profic 3 L 1, 741553
Other Tiscome | (Expenses)
Crther incomes'(zxpense), Het foragn exchonge gam(bos) (33,758 3803
Tuokal cher epanse [ ] 63803
Proft Before Income Tax 1, Tes 417 1,808, 7
Ipeome tax expense 4
Frofit attributakle to equity hokders of the parmt 1,765,417 1 H05, 7946
Cther Comprehensive Encome for the year . -
Tatal Comp rehemnsive Incmme for the year 5 1785417 % 1,805,796

#cll the Group® s opertvons are chenfied a5 contmumng,

The arrreted riobes from 1 bo # form an srdegral part of thess fenandal staternente
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MIKECG AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] MARCH 019
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N -:S: E.I:I. E;TE Tonl
Ealance st 1 April 2007 - 30,000 £ 1415941 ] 1,808 dnq
Het prod 1,505, 796 1,B05, 796
Davidend pasd S 1,000,001 {1, 00000)
Balance &t 31 March 2008 5 80,000 $ 2.7 5 2,701,727
Het prof 1, 765417 1,765 417
Davidand paid - - -
Balance # 31 March 2019 5 20,000 5 AET1H 5 4.467,144

The ansieead fiobes from 1 bo & form an dnbegral part of thess Granaal statesnanis

132/179



NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 019
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Kot 2019 e
Cacth Flows from Operating A ctivities
Crperating Profie L 3 1815215 1,741,550
Adfustroemnts for
Hek foreagn exdhange los (53,758 43,803
Operatoml cash flows befom movemmits mworkng
capital 1,765 417 1205 70
Changes in operting assets and Bab ilicbes
Diecreass |/ {increxse) m receivables 100,174 (3374, 068)
(Dicrense) / moreaze m payubles Cr 12 Ta3) el
Nt Cash Cenerated from Operating Activities 1,656,240 LT
Cash Flows from Financing Acth ities
Dneidends pard - (1,000,000 )
et Cash Tron Fioand ng Acivities - {180, 00T
Nt Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,656 240 007
Cush and cash squivalents, beginnmng of the yar 2,282 el 1841593
Cath and Cnsh Equivalents, End of the Year i 1,008 = 2282 080

The aerreted robes from 1 bo @ form an andegral part of thess fandaal staternents
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MIKK O AM GLOBAL CAYMANLTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] MARCH 2019

Mode 1 - General Inform ation

Hikhoo AR Flobal Cayman Lid  the Company™) and #5 subsidary (bogether “the Group®) mre incorported ed domaaled o the
Cayman Tflaeds The address of the registared cffice is PO B 3090T, Uglind Houss, South Chisrdh Street, Grand Cayenan,
Coyman Elands The prevegel sctivities of the Group and Company durng the pear were the proveson of neesiment advice and
mystrnent maragarent s ices bo ted partvess and olfver grag membears These pan-dabubory Fmancial staterments have e
prepared to 33 the preparation of consclsdated fnsncial sttements For the ipbarmediste parent compay

Hote 2 - Summary of Significant Acconnting Principles
The pracipal mocounting polsces sdoplted xre cof ot bel ow

Fasl of prejaration

The Growp and Company's inancal datemenishavebeen prepeed in sccordance with Intem atior! Fooncal Reporting Stendards
at adopled by the Evrcpean Thnson (IFES: a2 sdopled by the EUD and IFRIC miltepretabions apphicabile to comparnes reporting
under IFRS. Az ol 31 biarch 2005, the Comgany had adopted all IFR.S5 mnd mberpretations that had been isnsed by the Inbarrational
Acsnirbing Bandards Boand ¢ LASE™) and Inbernational Financial Repoting Inlapretations Camirnties & IFRIC™), wd endocsed
ty the ET. The accounbng polroes gef ol balow hors bean applisd consistently to all permods presented m these financal
Aatemerds [FREs comgriss scoounting standands ierued by the TASE and its prodecessor body s well a5 nterprotations iesued by
the IFRIC and it predecesor body

Bask of consolidation

Pubmdiariesare entdies controdled by the Group. Costrol mtists when $e Group hise the power to g the fnancial s operating
polaces of an ality 0 & bo chiaen berefits from ks schivibes In aspemrng cvntrol, the Orogp Lakoes inbo conaideration potertml
votzng nights thet are corantly exercimble The scquintion dabe & the date an which confrol is trensferred to the sogare. The
[rnanesl stabements of subsidmnes oo inchaded inthe conselidated [maneial stabsenerts from the dabe that control cornmmenoes
unis] the date tha condrol cexses Losses spplicable to the non-conbrolling inkerests m 2 sobadisery are allocated bo the non-
wonitrodhng mbereds san of doing mmﬁ\e eronecoritredlmg inderests 1o have o defiot balance.

Seandards and imterpretations Esaed bt e yet dTective
IFE.E 16 Lease Accambing 1 effective from 1 Jamuary 2019 The company has no lmses 2o there 15 no effed of the stinderd o

The comgarty

Tiew ccoant ing standards adopied
The LASE has pmased severs| sanendmenits to IFREs that are first effectee for the aament accounting persod of the company. Mooe
of these developensnts hathad a matenal ampact to the corganmy’ s finacal statemns

Measurememnt convent ion
The Gnancal staternats have boon prepared under the hasterscal oot sanventaon

Estimates and assumptions

The properation of francial statements pequires manxpemmant bo malor estemabes and assumptions Bt affect the smounts reported
For aspetz and lisbililzes as o the balence sheat dabe wnd the amounts reported for reveues and expenes during the year. The nahere
of estarrudyon rrvéan 5 that sctual sutcomes could differ from these estimates. The asarmpbions and estemates, whech are contamuciasly
reviewed, are based on pact experience & other factors, meluding sopectations regarding likely dovelopments o the fubze AL
31 March 201% and 3018 there ware no matenal adenates cr lmlrphm

Accounts receivable

Acoourts recevable include smaounts due for mansgement, advisoey end performance fees and smounts due from custorners and
otfsare Al acconts peceviab e ane repayable on demand or within o yesr They are recorded in the balanes shest ab cont, reduced
by wppropriabe allow snices for estinnabed rrecow arable smousits, and they wre mierest beanng

Accounis payable

Acenizks papsbbe nchade smounts dus for sub-advisory seevices and performance e and amoonts dee to vendoes and others
Al wootarks paysble are chaszified aecordng bo the aubstance of the contractual armirgernent endered tnbo. They are payrable on
demand o shithn one yeir and are recorded on the balance sheet of oot Amounts owed bo group undestakmgs e ursecured,
mberest Eee and have no ficed berms of repayenent

Cady and eash equ bvalemts

Cash ard cash eqaivabenbs comprise cash m banks snd 1n hasd end short-Serm depomits wnth an onigenal matuny of three mmonths
o besz and forengn currencies held by the Group and Company. For the purpeses of e cach fow staterment, cach and cash
equralals consd of cash and cath egavalents a2 defred sbove, nat of culdardmg back overdrafls

Operating revemies )

Cpersling revenues include commasmons and iowestment maragenen, awedtment advizory and performnance fees

revenies are menained o the S valee of the consudenation receved or recervable for sarnces provided m the nommal courss o
bairmiess, nat of dizoousts, trasl Doz, VAT and other salespelabed fanes

IFRE 15, Revere from Confracts with Custormers replaced LAS 18 Revenue snd mdrodacesd o five ftap mpproach to revenoe
recogrdiion: O identifymp the contract with the customner, u) sdentifing the perforenance chifpations, s} identily the contract price
{ mssocasted reveriie, ) allocate the considerstion to the relevast performamee chligations, and v recognisng the reveae as the
performrancs chligalvons are satisfied
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MIKK O AM GLOBAL CAYMANLTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] MARCH 2019

The Company has spplied ITFRE 15 refrospedialy, bt bes ddenmined that there 1 no adpusbment $o the retssned esmmgz e ot |
Agnil 20018 Comparative informabion has not been aflected and therefors norestatement i regquased . The Conpany hasurrdertadoen
arewiew of &3 condradts with cusiomens mnd conclided that there i3 o smpact on the way tnwhich & recograses dsrevenaes asne
element of 15 revenue pelies on estimates or 15 subject b reversal or significant reciatement

Conmmissions and mvestment mans gament xnd advisory fees and ssscciated charges are recogrised when the services concemed
arererdered Investrnent managenent and advatory feet are caloulabed a2 a percertages of asoas under management Cormfromion:
e rocgri pid on 8 Eade dafe bases, caloulabed onoa percentags of the sale Performance fees are recogrused n the peniod @ which
ey beacorme dos and oolleciable

Operating exprises
Omperating expenses are gocounted For when they bescome payable

Dividenads
Equity dmaderds bo the dhardholder of the Oreip are pecognised a2 a liabildy @ the parvod derng whads they are declared and
approved.

Forelgn currencies
The fanctiona] sd presendstscnal correnay of the Group and Comgeny & TS dollars (52

Trrssdions m curances ofher than U8 dellars are recorded af the rabes of endhangs prevalmng on the dates of the ransachons
Al each balance heet date, monelary aspets snd liabilites that ase dencorranabed in forsign cusrencies are setranalated at the rates
peeadlicg on the balines dheet date Mon-monetiey asoets and lisbilfies cirmed o fair vahes that ase danomirated in forsign
mu:nmiﬂdlhrﬂsmﬂmgdﬂxiﬂzwhm!uu&mmmd Jams end |osses sreing on retramatahon
areanchided in net prolit or boss for the pemod, sncept for enchange differences srang onnea-meonetary stz and lakalities where
the changes in fur value are recogrised drectly m equity

Finan< al instnamenits

FRE ¥, Financial Instrusments replaced theclassilication endmesnmemant contained in 1AS 39 Finencial Ingnaments: Recogniion
] Measirernent (LAS 38 I accondanos with IFRS 9, the Company”s fnancial asoets have been reclasabed st srmorted cost,
far value Beough other comgeehmsme mncome or Bir value through ymﬂt o loss The Company has spplied [FRE &

retrospectivaty, with the mtenton of mduding sy requirsd ady il bo d mmmgs &= ot 1 Apad 2018 Compartive
Eforrration bz rot been restabad

The vast n'u]u'i.}l-n!'l}nf:u'rpn}l‘: fmaneisl maruments are cash and recevables which are menared ot smortised cod.

Following the Company's sdoplion of IFR.E %06 1 Aprl 2018 the Company has evalusted potenbial creddt Josses on all Emancial
At it e Mryatied o asmeoetised cost Factors considerad i daterminan whether a defai® i Lizely or possib be inchade whather
& payment i overdue (and the bength of that period), sy knosm deariorstion m e credit quality of a clienticounterparty o olher
tsaa et that could sdverssly affed a clant' sioourterparty’s cradi qualdy

For firaneial srsets whers there o no bmown e affecng credit quality, expecied ared logses are caloulabed based on the lowses
that s expacted bo be incurred over a rollmg trelvemonth paresd Green the nalire of the Company’ s financial assebs (1.4 mostly
cash ot bark), there i a very low oredit sk The Company i1 also conmdering the uoe of money market funds 1o noreage
divernficabion and further reduce credit ngk

Fer any lirancnl assde whers the contractual payrst  mmore than 30 days past dae, the defauk posiion £ 1o a8 &0 Daae
moedd nde Howewrer, defmilk levels nﬂupu‘th:.ub-nﬂ'l. ermadens] amd Hrere were no fee receresbles past dos oot 31 Merch
29

Trovestmamats in subsidiaries
Ineestreents in subsidierses are stabed o the parent comp sery's bakance sheet at cost less any provisions for enparmant

obe & — Investment in Subsidiary
COMPANY

Al 31 March 200% and 31 klerch: 3018 the Company had an owedment of §1. In the opmion of the dredtors, the Company's
mvastenent 18 not s aired. Details of the i estrect are a2 follows

Number, class and
percenzage of shares
Hikdeis AR (City i) Ltd Gmeral partrier LCnT iRy st
meu of £1, 100%

Mote 4 — Taxaton

M]!Mﬁ[?ﬂﬂ&hlﬂn&whﬂhk{nﬂuﬂrﬂplﬁdﬂwﬂuﬂpﬁw profis s %4 because there & no bax leveed
mCl:,n'n.m :hrl.d.rmrp.l'ue:
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MIKK O AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] MARCH 2019

Note 5 - Finmmcial Risk Faclors

The Grog ard Company"s fnancal instruments compaite cath and cash squvalents and recarsble and payab s balmeoss that
wrese from 25 duily cpemtions Al cash and cash equmalents ie camied o cost which i considered b i proximate bo fuir vaboe
due 1o the short berm matursty of these Bnancal nidruments The mam ndos azsociabed with the Grosp and Campany's fnancal
asiats el labulilies are sl ol bejow

Credit risk

Credit nsk &5 defined as She risk of fnencil loss due'to a counbapoety s failurs o honour its cbligatson preicpally im relibion ko
transactions whene the Group or Company prosides goods o services on defered barms and whene & mvests or deposits orplus
cazh The Group or Comgany do nct beher e that they are maberally apozed to oedit ke &3 ks mbes debbors are managed group
Bands ared theratore managerment snd perlormancs fees recemable ste govemed by & agreaments with theze finds To rrotigate
vy remidual rishe of these pssets fnilng 1o be defwersd, the CGroop ;d Company engare tha the terme of thess sgredmants in
relabion o payrenls of managemnent and perforenan s fees are sdlired 1o by moralonrg 13 aged deblor ana ez agaiest the agresd
srvice level agresments

The g and Cornpany adopls the palicy of debing writh asfomers of sppropnate aredd hstory. For ofher [mandal asses, the
Group and Company sdopts tepolcy of dealing with financial mstauisons and other coxmberpuetios with high cedit ratings. Thare
dre o Ernosl astdts pad diss s/ or irpared as o8 31 Maech 2009 and 2018 Trade recerrables are due ot leasl quacterty, and are
normally settled within 30 duys of ther due date There ase no ovendue rwde recerrabbes at the balincs shest date

Further, with regasd to bank deposds, the Group and Comgany only deponts mooey with spprovend counterpartzss on agreed bams

Market risk

Markcet riske (or spsberme rigk) ar defined ag that risk which i ooenmoen Lo an snlee dlass of szets of habdises whereby ther valbue
can fuctuate simgly because of economis changes o other events that smpact large partions: of the market The Orogp and
Coripany do nok beliene that they are exposed Lo irabenal marke ride a2 e azsets the Group and Company rmanage are heid by
ared fr the benafit of fund holders Shrough separate legal entities

Currency ik
Qurrency nidk is dafined a5 the ndk that e vaboe of Group or Company azsets and histaltes denomanabed o aurrencs other than
the furchional currency of the Group or Company will dunge nsalue dee bo movaments 1 foram exdvmpe rabes  The Group
] Cotrpany are ecposed bo curensy misk artning from van ol cumeney expoades, primanly with respect to the Japaness Tan
(TEY), Bterling Pound (GBF) and Singapane Daollar (330). The Group and Company”s fee meome iz recérrod mamly m USD and
JEY, AL 31 Miwrch 2069 aned 2008, had these mmwmw Lir% againet the TRED mith all other vanables
mnehading tax rabe being held constant, e Jrogp and Company's profit befors tag for the Brancial year would have been
er a5 2 reaol of auerency ransiatson losses guing an the remainnig correndy depominated cashbalances, traderecevables

avd payabbes by the balow ameounts
CUTTEY a9 aE
{Fuotrded io neared £ 1]
Y § 54,000 5 27 000
GEF s, 000 44,000
230 56,000 145,000

Liquidiny risk and Mnancial sabeney ik

Liquidity risk is defined 2 the mdc that the Group or Comgany will not be able to meet ds fmancinl oblipations as they fall due
The Group ead Company’s sppeotch Lo managing i fid = bo saire that i has saflioend haeiddy to meet ibs liabidtaes when
due, both under nosenl and sessed condibons.

Capital management
The Group snd Compey capaal ponbon 1z moritored on an ongeeng basis 1o msure that & 5 sdequate There are no etamally
mmp osed caprlal requmements

Falr Value of Financial Tnd naments
The e values of fimmoed aszets and fimancial hisbalfes that ere raded m achive marckets ane based on quoted markd pnces or
hhmm For all other finencial retnaments, the Group determmies fr valies usmg ofr valuation techmigues

Fer firareaal metnaments that trads mirequectly snd havs hitle peice Sangarency, fur valoe o bz obhpedave, and requres varying
degrees of pdpement depending on squidity, concentration, uncertuinty of market Ewctors, pricing sraumptions end other pzks
sffeding the mecific mdrument.

The Whlebelow analyses financal sstnanents, mibo o fair value hisrardhy based on the vahustion bechnique used bo deterrone fair
vahue

& Level 1 quoled preces (unadiuted) i sctive markets foe sdentacal assets or lubilities

® Level 20 irgouts other than quobed prrces mebuded withi Lavel 1 that are cbasrvwable for the asset or Habilidy, either deectly
(e, as prces) of indeectly (Lo, deewed from prices)

@ Level 3 irguas for the asvet or Habildy that are not based on obeervable marlet daka (on chearvable mpuls)
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Year mded 31 March 2019 —Levell Level 2 Ll 3 Total 2019
Asyee ] H 2 H

Cazh wnd cash equiwalent Bkt b - 3938908
Accounts recevable 3,150,108 RSB
A inoorme and prepand eqpate 71,250 1,250
Linbilities

Acmusd expmo and deferred meame 144,400 146, ey
Accounts payatile 124,271 128,271
Atoounts pgwll-lum 3462361 246230
Year mded 31 March 3013 Levell Level2 Level 3 Total 2018
Asis 5 H S 5

Cash ard cash squeralent 2282 0bi) 2283 iy
Acooiants recawablie & 28 a2 el )
Ao neode and prepaid apmae 71250 71.2%
LEbilities

Acenss] stpames and delemed moome 165 000 165,000
HAccounts payable 167553 100, 558
i pryablato grovg 162329 323,202
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All fruaeeia] sasets and [mbalies xne carrsed at historical cost. The far vatues of all feancial assts and habdities aee mimlae to
ther carymig vahees owing b theer thort bermn nakhure

Mote & - Helated Party Transaotons

Trarsections betwem the Groop mnd Sompeny and related partres sre disclosed below

Diebtor as Credibor x5 at
Operating Operating at 31 March 31 March
Year mded 31 March 2019 FEevemues Expenus (1) 2019 by FLLELT]
Wk doroed Bolana gament fumericas, Ine 3 = i 4 T35 108 z - g 339775
ko Axsst Mlans et Furop e Lid - SaATR ML - 1,253,147
Nicko Artel Managsnent Co, Lid - 2,634,320 - 307,671
Hidhop fusset Managesreent Azia Lid - 200,148 - 45,065
Hitko Adset Managernent Hong Keng - 136,852 - 12,733
Total 5 - 3 19085557 5 - 5 raszien
Debtor as Creditor x5 at
Operating Operating at 31 March 31 March
¥ear mded 31 March 2018 Revermies Expenses (a) MEmy )
Hikcko Agset Manaperent Ammericas, Ine 3 - 5 BALTIA 5 - 5 2231317
Wik Asscet dfanaypament Furop = Lid = 10,465 491 = TE2, 238
Witk Actet Manapenent Co | Lid - 3643120 - 223,129
Hicko Azset Management Ana Lid - 2605050 - 204,310
Hicko Assel Banagament Hong Kong - 172,21 - 172,291
Total i = 5 28 566,535 3 i ot s et d
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] MARCH 2019

i} Operaling expermes pasd b0 relsied parbes sre pryable under mwveshmend monagement agreements and are for Band
mgﬂ'ﬁﬁilﬂm

1) The mrounts cubdanding ee maeared and will be setiled & cash. No guaranbees bave been piven orreceived. Ho provisions
Fsasee ety ircde for deubifil dadbis onrespedt of the amomnls owed by related paraes

Mikko Meset Managemend Armercas, Inc., Mikko Assst Mansgerment Europe Lid, Hkko Acsd Management A Lid and Hicko

A Marogermnt Hong Reng ee fellow gibadisries Hikke Asset Management Co., Lid & an indiredt. shareholder of the
sicrarertioned subadises

Mote 7 - Ultimute Holding Company

The Group o 4 wiielly owned sbsdiary of Mildeo AM Global Holdangs Lid, de snmedint s pasent wndatalang, & comjary widdh
iz registered = England wnd Wales

In the cpmion of the directors the ulbmabe parert company, and controllng party, 32 Samiome hMitns Tl Holdngs, Inc, »
company moarporated m Japan. Firaneial sadements for Sndome Mitan Trast Holdngs, Ine are aeaalable bo the puabhe froem

thelrsretor Relabions Office, Financial Plinning Deparbrent, Surmbermss bitso Trud Heldmgs, Ine 1. 0, Marincud, Chiyeda.
Teu, Toleyo 100-82 33, Jagan. Copies of the snnua] report can be wiewad orretraeved from

Mote 8 - Sabsequent Evenis

Bubepacquent bothe statement of fmancial postion date, Bhars wepe o everts which bad & aegad on Bhe consoladabed and midindual
Fnanca] stabernengs -ofmefm'pmy
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@
CIBC
CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
2019 40,170,884 43 3,002
CIBC 1965
2018
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2018 12 985,000,000 1,061 7,315
(©))
UFJ PB
2019 80
(O]
2019 173 63

140/179



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

®
LLC
Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC)
2018 12 658,000,000 709 2,582
@
90
@
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)
®
UFJ PB
JSDA
JSDA
)
©)
SEC
)
Q)
LLC
LLC
2002 11 2003 SEC
2016 LLC
LLC NB LLC NB
LLC LLC
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1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

2019

2019

1993

3.1

3.2

*

CIMA

1993

2018

1960

10,916 2,930

2019

2018
CIMA

CIMA

CIMA
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2018

4,268

3.2

CIMA

15



3.3

(a
@G
i
(ii
(A
(B
(b (M (i)

(i)
CIMA

4.1

4.2 CIMA
(a
(b
(c
«
(e
2018

4.3

4.4 2006 12 27

CIMA

5.1

5.2

100,000

100,000

4,268

CIMA
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4,268
CIMA
CIMA
3,049
CIMA
CIMA
2018
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA



5.3
CIMA
5.4

) 2.3
5.5 CINA

(a
(b

(c
(d
(e
5.6 CIMA

5.7

5.8

CIMA

36,585
8,536

6.1
(a

O

(c

@

®

2018

CIMA

3.3

24,390
8,536

42,682
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48

3.2
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
30,488



6.2

6.3

(e
(f
(]

(h
@i

(k

a

(m

(n

30

(a

O

(c

(

(e

(f

(9

(h
@i

1925

20

150

(a

G®

(c

2018

CIMA

1907
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(@

(e

(f

(9

(h

@i

(k

2013

(i
(i

Gii

(iv

(v

50

CIMA

2017

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

CIMA

500

7.3

7.3

10

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA CIMA

10

CIMA

CIMA
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7.7 CIMA 7.9

(a
(b

(c

«
(e

7.8

(a

(b

(c

«
7.9

(a

(b
(c

(d
(e

7.7 CIMA

CIMA
CIMA

CIMA CIMA
7.7 CIMA

b)

7.10 CIMA 7.9 CIMA

7.14

7.15
(a
(b

(c

(a
(b

(c

()

(e

CIMA

7.9(d) 7.9(e)
CINA CINA

7.9(e)

7.13

7.9(d) 7.9(e)

CINA CINA CINA

CINA
CINA
7.15(b) CINA

7.9(d) 7.9(e) 7.15

CINA

7.15 CIMA

CIMA
94(4)

7.9(d) 7.9(e)
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CIMA

CIMA

7.17

7.9

7.17(c)

CIMA

8.7

8.8

8.9

(a
(b

(a

O

(c

(d
(e

(f

(a

CIMA

500

8.3

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

8.8

@

(i

Gii

8.3

CIMA

CIMA
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8.1
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b)
CINA CINA
CINA CINA
CINA
10
CINA

CINA

8.10
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(iv CINA
v CINA
(vi CINA

(viii  CIMA
(b CIMA
(c CIMA
(d CIMA
.10 8.8 CIMA
(a
(b
(c
(d
(e
.11 CIMA 8.10 CIMA

.12 8.10(d) 8.10(e)
CINA CINA
.13 8.10(e)

8.14  8.13
8.15  8.10(d) 8.10(e)

(a CINA CINA
@ CIMA

(c 8.15(b)

.16 8.10(d) 8.10(e)
(a 8.15
¢
CINA
.17 8.15
(a CINA
@ 94(4)
(c CINA 8.10(d) 8.10(e)

.18 CIMA 8.16 CIMA

.19 CIMA CIMA

(a

(b
.20

.21
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9.1 CIMA

(b

(c

(

CIMA
9.2 9.1() 9.1(d)
CIMA

9.3 CIMA

(a 9.1(a) 9.1(d)

(b

(c
9.4 CIMA

CIMA CIMA CIMA

(a
(b
(c
(d

(e
CIMA
9.5 CIMA CIMA CIMA
9.6 CIMA

20

10 CIMA
10.1 CIMA

(a CINA
(b
(c

CIMA

(a CINA

(b 2016 2019
2017

(c

(@ CINA
CINA

(e

11
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Report of Independent Auditors

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of NEUB Corporate Hybrid

Securities Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund (the “ Fund” ),
which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments, as of February
28, 2019, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows and the financial
highlights for the year then ended. These financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter

collectively referred to as “ financial statements”

Management’ s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Fund’ s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund as of February 28, 2019, and the results of its
operations, changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended,
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

June 28, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (the “ Company” ) for the year ended 31
March 2019 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the Company Statement of Financial
Position as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and related notes including
the accounting policies in note 2. The non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the reasons set out in note
1.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (* ISAs (UK)” ) and the terms

of our engagement letter dated 3 May 2019. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and

appropriate basis for our opinion.

The impact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the European Union on our audit

Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the financial
statements. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors and related
disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of
these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the company’ s future prospects and
performance.

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK, and at the date of this report its effects are
subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We
applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the company’ s future
prospects and performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible
future implications for a company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory accounts on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the group or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the group and the company’ s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at
least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts (“ the going concern period” ).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts. In our
evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the group’ s business model,
including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the group and company’ s financial
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resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these

respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
to a material uncertainty in this auditor®s report is not a guarantee that the group will continue in operation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the director’ s report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’ s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
ww . Frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.
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Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

2 August 2019
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Report of Independent Auditors

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of NEUB Corporate Hybrid

Securities Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund (the “ Fund” ),
which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments as of February 28,
2018, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows and the financial
highlights for the period from February 22, 2017 (commencement of operations) through February 28, 2018. These
financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter collectively referred to as “ financial statements”

Management’ s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Fund’ s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund as of February 28, 2018, and the results of its
operations, changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the period from
February 22, 2017 (commencement of operations) through February 28, 2018, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

July 20, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (“ the company” ) for the year
ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the Company
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income,
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and related notes including the summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of its loss
for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ ISAs (UK)” ) and
the terms of our engagement letter dated 2 May 2018. Our responsibilities are described below. We have
fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK
ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of
accounting is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt over the use of that basis for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the
non-statutory accounts. We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors”™ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the
preparation of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an
auditor’ s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it

exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It
has been released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or
disclosed, in whole (save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior
written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s
needs at the time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by
any party wishing to acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any

context. Any party other than the Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to
rely on our report (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of our report to any other party.

Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

25 July 2018
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